
1 
 

 

 

PUBLIC/LEGAL NOTICE 

 
The regular monthly Board meeting of the Lisle Library District (LLD) Board of Trustees will be held on November 18, 2020 at 7:00 

pm in the Meeting Room of the Lisle Library District, 777 Front Street, Lisle, Illinois. 

 

In accordance with Governor Pritzker’s Executive Order 2020-43, all persons over the age of 2 who are medically able to tolerate a 

face covering (a mask or cloth face covering) must cover their nose and mouth when in the public space. Meeting attendees shall 

comply with social distancing guidelines and room arrangements. The Library also recognizes the Governor’s Executive Order No. 

2020-07 which suspends certain requirements of the Open Meetings Act, allowing Library Trustees to participate remotely. Due to 

COVID-19 limitations, citizens may provide public comment via email: library@lislelibrary.org or via the USPS mail addressed to: 

Public Comment/Administration, 777 Front Street, Lisle, IL 60532, by 3:00 pm on the meeting day.  Submitted comments will not be 

read aloud. Comments will be provided to the Board prior to the regular meeting and will become part of the meeting record. 

 

Members of the public may participate remotely by using this link: 

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/6414143328590407180 

Webinar ID: 298-058-635 

Please follow the instructions provided in the confirmation email. 

Public Comment for Those Attending Remotely: Please listen for instructions at the beginning of the meeting. 

Public Comment Prior to the Meeting: Due to COVID-19 limitations, citizens may provide public comment via email: 

library@lislelibrary.org or via the USPS mail addressed to: Public Comment/Administration, 777 Front Street, Lisle, IL 60532, by 3:00 

pm on the meeting day. Submitted comments will not be read aloud. Comments will be provided to the Board prior to the regular 

meeting and will become part of the meeting record. 

 

The LLD records all regular Board meetings. Any person who has a disability requiring accommodations to participate in this 

meeting should contact the Lisle Library during regular business hours within 48 hours before the meeting. Requests for a qualified 

interpreter require three working days advance notice. 

 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING 

November 18, 2020 - 7:00 p.m. 

 

1. Roll call 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak 

3. Assignments for reviewing monthly accounts payable 

a. President Hummel and Trustee Sullivan reviewed the October billings in November 

b. Treasurer Norton and Trustee Duffy will review the November billings in December 

4. Consent Agenda - Action Required 

a. Approve Minutes of the October 21, 2020 Board Meeting 

b. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Report, 10/31/20, Investment Activity Report, 10/31/20,  Current Assets 

Report, 10/31/20, Revenue Report, 10/31/20, and Expense Report, 10/31/20 

c. Authorize Payment of Bills, 11/18/20 

5. Unfinished Business 

a. Facility Options: Communications Plan Discussion - CCS 

6. Committee Reports 

a. Finance 

b. Personnel/Policy 

c. Physical Plant 

7. Staff Reports 

a. Director’s Report 

b. Assistant Director’s Report 

1 

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/6414143328590407180


2 
 

8. New Business 

a. Approve LLD Policy 606: Public Health Response - Action Required 

Approval of LLD Policy 606 and supplemental Administrative documents 

b. Accept Architectural contract - Sheehan, Nagle, Hartray Architects - Action Required 

Acceptance of proposal for requested Concept Phase scope of work. 

c. Adopt Ordinance 20-06: Tax Levy Ordinance - Action Required 

Annual ordinance levying taxes for corporate purposes for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and 

ending June 30, 2021. 

d. Approve Certification of Compliance with TITA - Action Required 

Annual Certificate of Compliance with the Truth in Taxation Act. 

9. Opportunity for Trustee comments (five minutes) 

Bartelli, Duffy, Hummel, Larson, Norton, Sullivan, Swistak 

10. Adjourn 

2 



 

1 
 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING 

October 21, 2020 - 7:00 p.m. 

 

1. Roll call 
Present: 
Thomas Hummel - President 
Marjorie Bartelli - Vice President (via GoToMeeting) 
Jenny Norton - Treasurer (via GoToMeeting) 
Emily Swistak - Secretary (via GoToMeeting) 
Thomas Duffy - Trustee (via GoToMeeting) 
Karen Larson - Trustee 
Liz Sullivan - Trustee (via GoToMeeting) 
 
Also present: 
Tatiana Weinstein - Director 
Beth McQuillan - Assistant Director 
Chris Knight - Recording Secretary 
Marc Rogers - CCS International Inc., Project Manager 
Michael Del Valle - Auditor, Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 
 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak - None 
 

3. Assignments for reviewing monthly accounts payable 
a. Vice President Bartelli and Trustee Larson reviewed the September billings in October 

b. President Hummel and Trustee Sullivan will review the October billings in November 

 

4. Consent Agenda 

a. Approve Minutes of the September 16, 2020 Public Hearing for Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 

b. Approve Minutes of the September 16, 2020 Board Meeting 

c. Approve Minutes of the September 16, 2020 Executive Session 

d. Approve Minutes of the October 13, 2020 Special Board Meeting 

e. Approve Minutes of the October 14, 2020 Special Board Meeting  

f. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Report, 09/30/20, Investment Activity Report, 09/30/20,  Current Assets 

Report, 09/30/20, Revenue Report, 09/30/20, and Expense Report, 09/30/20 

g. Authorize Payment of Bills, 10/21/20 

 

MOTION #1: Treasurer Norton moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Trustee Duffy seconded. 

 

Discussion: President Hummel recommended amending the minutes of the October 13, 2020 

Special Board Meeting and October 14, 2020 Special Board Meeting by adding the times that each 

architect firm arrived. 

 

MOTION #2: Trustee Duffy moved to amend the minutes of the October 13, 2020 Special Board Meeting 
and October 14, 2020 Special Board Meeting. Vice President Bartelli seconded. 

 

Discussion: Secretary Swistak asked Trustee Duffy for clarification on the amendment. Trustee Duffy 
explained the addition of arrival times. 

 

3 



 

2 
 

 

Roll Call Vote for MOTION #2 - All Aye. The motion passed. 

 

Roll Call Vote for MOTION #1 - All Aye. The motion passed. 

 

5. Annual Audit Presentation - Lauterbach & Amen presentation 
 
Michael Del Valle, from Lauterbach & Amen, presented the annual audit. 

 
Discussion: President Hummel asked about surplus funds. Mr. Del Valle mentioned the surplus of 
$118,333 and endorsed moving funds from the General Fund to Special Reserves. President 
Hummel asked about deficit spending. Mr. Del Valle explained that the LLD was not deficit 
spending. He reiterated that moving funds from the General Fund to the Special Reserve Fund is a 
proper action. 
 
 Treasurer Norton thanked Mr. Del Valle for the presentation and mentioned the management letter 
comments. Mr. Del Valle thanked the Board and staff for taking the management letter comments 
seriously and acting on them. 
 

Mr. Del Valle left the meeting at 7:23 p.m. 
 

6. Unfinished Business 
a. Facility Options: Communications Plan Discussion 

 

Director Weinstein provided a recap of communication plan solutions using Trustee ideas.  

 

Discussion: Mr. Rogers recommended communicating the problems, the solutions, and why 

expending funds now will save money in the long run. Board members discussed methods of 

communicating, timelines, a digital dashboard, and funding information. 

Director Weinstein suggested that Trustees provide more feedback via email regarding key 

elements for the dashboard. Board members agreed to email the Director with their ideas.  

 
Mr. Rogers left the meeting at 7:51 p.m. 

 
7. Committee Reports 

a. Finance - Treasurer Norton provided an overview of the October 6th Finance Committee meeting. 
 

Discussion: President Hummel asked about an upcoming Committee meeting. Director 
Weinstein stated it would occur in mid to late November. 

 
b. Personnel/Policy - Secretary Swistak stated the Committee has scheduled a meeting on Wednesday, 

November 11th at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Discussion: President Hummel asked if the topic included the policy with the legal review. 
Director Weinstein confirmed that the LLD attorney reviewed the drafts.   

 

c. Physical Plant - Vice President Bartelli stated the Committee had not met due to ongoing 
discussions with CCS. 
 

4 



 

3 
 

8. Staff Reports 
 
Director Weinstein mentioned Governor Pritzker’s recent proclamation extending the emergency executive 
order. She stated the Library would continue to maintain all of the safety protocols related to minimizing 
risk, one hour limit for patrons, and continuing curbside pick-up. Director Weinstein mentioned an increase 
in virtual and outdoor programming, hot spot check outs in the near future, and a story walk project by 
Youth Services. Director Weinstein stated she was in the process of applying for FEMA funds for PPE. She 
mentioned the addition of two online resources; PressReader and Kanopy.  
 

Discussion: President Hummel suggested ordering extra PPE. He commented on the success of the 
outdoor programming and suggested also talking to the County for PPE funding. 
 

Assistant Director McQuillan mentioned that the LLD’s landscaping firm would soon begin work on the the 
detention wall. 
 

Discussion: Vice President Bartelli stated she had a conversation with Assistant Director McQuillan 
about the costs of smaller projects. Vice President Bartelli asked about the barcoding and 
referencing of furnishings and materials. Assistant Director McQuillan explained that the purpose is 
for auditors to put a value on equipment and materials. Director Weinstein mentioned the French 
drain project was to mitigate the icing on the sidewalks on the southeast end of the parking lot. 
Secretary Swistak stated she appreciated the Department Directors’ quarterly reports. 

 
9. New Business 

a. LLD vacant lots - Discussion 

 

Discussion: The Board discussed the vacant lots to the east and south of the Library. Board 

members agreed to retain both lots for the time being. 

 

b. Accept Annual Audit - Action Required 

MOTION: Treasurer Norton moved to accept the annual audit. Trustee Sullivan seconded. 

Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 
 

c. Approve Resolution 20-04: Resolution to Determine Estimate of Funds - Action Required 

MOTION: Trustee Duffy moved to approve Resolution 20-04: Resolution to Determine Estimate of 

Funds. Treasurer Norton seconded. 
 

Discussion: Director Weinstein provided an explanation about the agenda item. 

 

Treasurer Norton stepped away from the GoToMeeting at 8:21 p.m. 
 
Roll Call Vote - Trustee Duffy - Aye, Trustee Norton - Absent, Trustee Sullivan - Aye, Trustee Swistak - 
Aye, Trustee Bartelli - Aye, Trustee Larson - Aye, Trustee Hummel - Aye. The motion passed. 

 

Treasurer Norton returned at 8:23 p.m. 
 

d. November 3, 2020 Election Day closing - Action Required 

MOTION: Trustee Duffy moved to approve the November 3, 2020 Election Day closing. Trustee Larson 

seconded. 

 

5 



 

4 
 

Discussion: Director Weinstein provided an explanation about the agenda item. Board 

members discussed whether other local agencies were going to be open or closed on  

November 3rd. Board members established that having the Library open would provide  

access for patrons who many need important information on such an significant day. 

 

President Hummel called for a vote on the motion. He stated a yes vote was for closing the 

Library and a no vote was to keep the Library open. 

 

Roll Call Vote - All Nay. The motion failed. 

 
10. Opportunity for Trustee comments (five minutes) 

 
Vice President Bartelli stated she appreciated the interview meetings last week and thanked staff and CCS 
for organizing. She appreciated the quarterly reports, library visits by Trustees, and discussion on the 
communications plan. Vice President Bartelli thanked President Hummel for delivering Board packets. 
Trustee Duffy stated that he enjoyed the presentations and discussions last week. Trustee Larson thanked 
staff and CCS for organizing the meetings last week. Treasurer Norton gave kudos to everyone for their 
efforts and remarked about the public’s input in the renovation. Secretary Swistak stated she continues to 
appreciate curbside pick-up services and thanked staff for continuing the service. President Hummel asked 
about a drop in curbside pick-up. Director Weinstein mentioned curbside use has declined due to the 
Library being open to the public. President Hummel discussed the Public Comment Policy. He mentioned 
the increase in the number of Board meetings and asked Trustees to be respectful of staff time. 
 

11. Adjourn 
MOTION: Trustee Larson moved to adjourn the meeting. Trustee Sullivan seconded. 

Roll Call Vote - All Aye 
The meeting adjourned at 8:44 p.m. 
 

Recorded by 

 

____________________________________ 

Chris Knight, Recording Secretary 
 
Approved by the Board of Trustees on November 18, 2020. 

Approved by 
 

_____________________________________ 
Emily Swistak, Secretary of the LLD Board of Trustees 

6 



7 



8 



9 



10 



11 



12 



13 



14 



15 



16 



17 



18 



19 



20 



21 



22 



23 



24 



25 



26 



27 



28 



29 



30 



31 



32 



33 



34 



35 



36 



37 



38 



39 



M
o

n
th

ly
 C

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

2
0

O
ct

-2
0

Y
T

D
 F

Y
 1

9
/2

0
Y

T
D

 F
Y

 2
0

/2
1

Y
T

D
 %

 C
h

an
ge

C
h

ec
ko

u
ts

R
e

n
e

w
al

s
TO

TA
LS

A
d

u
lt

 N
o

n
-P

ri
n

t
3

,6
7

9
3

,6
9

1
7

,3
7

0
3

6
,1

8
4

2
6

,6
7

0
-2

6
.2

9
%

A
d

u
lt

 P
ri

n
t

5
,0

5
0

3
,4

6
8

8
,5

1
8

4
1

,3
7

1
3

3
,3

9
8

-1
9

.2
7

%

A
d

u
lt

 T
o

ta
l

8
,7

2
9

7
,1

5
9

1
5

,8
8

8
7

7
,5

5
5

6
0

,0
6

8
-2

2
.5

5
%

YS
 N

o
n

-P
ri

n
t

8
5

5
1

,0
8

0
1

,9
3

5
1

1
,1

2
4

6
,8

7
2

-3
8

.2
2

%

YS
 P

ri
n

t
8

,4
6

2
6

,6
4

5
1

5
,1

0
7

5
3

,3
4

5
5

0
,7

7
5

-4
.8

2
%

To
ta

l Y
S

9
,3

1
7

7
,7

2
5

1
7

,0
4

2
6

4
,4

6
9

5
7

,6
4

7
-1

0
.5

8
%

D
ig

it
al

 M
ed

ia

O
ve

rd
ri

ve
3

,2
8

0
3

,2
8

0
1

0
,3

4
4

1
3

,9
3

8
3

4
.7

4
%

h
o

o
p

la
1

,9
2

9
1

,9
2

9
7

,9
9

3
8

,0
3

7
0

.5
5

%

R
B

 D
ig

it
al

4
9

2
4

9
2

1
,4

6
5

1
,7

4
9

1
9

.3
9

%

P
re

ss
R

e
ad

er
 *

1
,0

5
0

1
,0

5
0

N
/A

1
,5

1
5

-
K

an
o

p
y 

*
8

8
8

8
N

/A
1

3
1

-

To
ta

l D
ig

it
al

6
,8

3
9

0
6

,8
3

9
1

9
,8

0
2

2
5

,3
7

0
2

8
.1

2
%

Su
b

to
ta

l P
ri

n
t 

+ 
N

o
n

-P
ri

n
t/

D
ig

it
al

2
4

,8
8

5
1

4
,8

8
4

3
9

,7
6

9
1

6
1

,8
2

6
1

4
3

,0
8

5
-1

1
.5

8
%

C
o

m
p

u
te

r/
Te

ch
 S

es
si

o
n

s 
Lo

gi
n

s
8

3
3

8
3

3
1

0
,6

1
8

2
,9

1
5

-7
2

.5
5

%

D
at

ab
as

e 
U

sa
ge

/U
n

iq
u

e 
Lo

gi
n

s
3

,1
4

9
3

,1
4

9
1

0
,9

4
9

1
0

,3
8

7
-5

.1
3

%

W
ir

el
es

s 
U

se
3

1
6

3
1

6
6

,0
9

4
1

,4
5

6
-7

6
.1

1
%

Sc
an

n
X

 s
es

si
o

n
s/

jo
b

s
1

9
2

1
9

2
4

,6
9

0
8

2
6

-8
2

.3
9

%

M
u

se
u

m
 A

d
ve

n
tu

re
 P

as
se

s
1

1
1

1
1

2
0

4
0

-6
6

.6
7

%

To
ta

l I
T/

R
es

o
u

rc
e 

Se
ss

io
n

s
4

,5
0

1
0

4
,5

0
1

3
2

,4
7

1
1

5
,6

2
4

-5
1

.8
8

%

To
ta

l C
ir

cu
la

ti
o

n
2

9
,3

8
6

1
4

,8
8

4
4

4
,2

7
0

1
9

4
,2

9
7

1
5

8
,7

0
9

-1
8

.3
2

%

Li
te

ra
cy

 S
o

ft
w

ar
e 

U
sa

ge
 H

o
u

rs
0

3
5

0
0

-1
0

0
.0

0
%

B
o

rr
o

w
er

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

O
ct

. 2
0

2
0

 T
o

ta
l

Y
T

D
 1

9
/2

0
Y

T
D

 2
0

/2
1

Y
T

D
 %

 C
h

an
ge

N
ew

 L
ib

ra
ry

 C
ar

d
s 

A
d

d
ed

7
5

5
6

6
3

4
3

-3
9

.4
0

%
M

o
n

th
ly

 B
o

rr
o

w
e

rs
2

,2
4

5
1

2
,8

8
9

8
,5

8
1

-3
3

.4
2

%

To
ta

l #
 R

e
gi

st
er

ed
 B

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

8
,7

0
9

1
0

,5
0

3
8

,7
0

9
-1

7
.0

8
%

In
te

rL
ib

ra
ry

 L
o

an
s

M
at

er
ia

ls
 S

en
t

6
4

5
4

9
2

9
7

-4
5

.9
0

%

M
at

er
ia

ls
 R

ec
ei

ve
d

3
9

6
1

,5
8

1
1

,2
8

1
-1

8
.9

8
%

P
o

la
ri

s/
C

at
al

o
g 

H
o

ld
s

H
o

ld
s 

P
la

ce
d

4
,7

7
7

1
2

,1
4

5
2

0
,0

2
5

6
4

.8
8

%

H
o

ld
s 

C
h

ec
ke

d
 O

u
t 

4
,1

0
9

9
,4

7
9

1
7

,3
5

2
8

3
.0

6
%

* 
N

ew
 s

ta
tl

in
es

 f
o

r 
Se

p
te

m
b

er
 2

0
2

0
.

40 



Li
sl

e 
Li

b
ra

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
ro

gr
am

 a
n

d
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
- 

O
ct

o
b

er
 2

0
2

0
Li

b
ra

ry
 W

id
e

A
d

u
lt

Y
o

u
th

 
TS

/C
ir

c
Li

te
ra

cy
TO

TA
L

Y
TD

 F
Y

1
9

/2
0

Y
TD

 F
Y

2
0

/2
1

 %
 C

h
an

ge
Li

b
ra

ry
 E

ve
n

t 
St

at
is

ti
cs

 
St

af
f 

Fa
ci

lit
at

ed
 P

ro
gr

am
s

1
2

1
6

0
0

2
8

5
4

7
8

8
-8

3
.9

1
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

6
5

3
7

3
0

0
4

3
8

5
,2

8
0

1
,5

1
0

-7
1

.4
0

%

C
o

m
p

u
te

r/
Te

ch
n

o
lo

gy
 P

ro
gr

am
s

0
0

0
0

3
4

0
-1

0
0

.0
0

%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

0
0

0
0

1
5

2
0

-1
0

0
.0

0
%

P
er

fo
rm

er
/S

p
ea

ke
r/

A
u

th
o

r
1

0
1

1
2

2
-8

3
.3

3
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

1
0

0
1

0
4

0
5

1
4

-9
6

.5
4

%

LL
D

 E
ve

n
ts

 (
Su

m
R

d
, R

SG
, N

at
lL

ib
W

k,
 w

h
o

le
 L

ib
 e

ve
n

t)
4

4
4

8
1

0
0

.0
0

%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

7
3

7
3

7
2

6
8

0
4

1
0

.7
4

%

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
P

ro
gr

am
s 

4
1

3
1

6
0

0
3

3
5

9
7

9
8

-8
3

.5
8

%

To
ta

l P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
7

3
7

5
3

7
3

0
0

5
2

1
6

,5
6

3
2

,3
2

8
-6

4
.5

3
%

R
ef

e
re

n
ce

 Q
u

es
ti

o
n

s
2

,2
6

4
1

,0
2

4
1

,6
1

2
4

,9
0

0
2

6
,8

7
1

2
0

,8
3

2
-2

2
.4

7
%

V
o

lu
n

te
er

 H
o

u
rs

   
5

.0
0

0
.0

0
5

.0
0

5
1

0
.5

0
2

2
.5

0
-9

5
.5

9
%

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
O

u
tr

ea
ch

 V
is

it
s 

1
0

0
1

6
7

2
-9

7
.0

1
%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 V

is
it

s
8

5
0

0
8

5
4

,0
4

3
1

1
5

-9
7

.1
6

%

H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
D

at
es

 
2

2
9

9
0

.0
0

%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 v
ia

 H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y
1

2
5

1
2

5
5

5
6

5
5

8
0

.3
6

%

To
ta

l O
u

tr
ea

ch
 P

ro
gr

am
s

3
0

0
3

7
6

1
1

-8
5

.5
3

%

To
ta

l P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 w
it

h
 O

u
tr

ea
ch

 S
er

vi
ce

s
2

1
0

0
0

2
1

0
4

,5
9

9
6

7
3

-8
5

.3
7

%
C

iv
ic

 F
ac

ili
ty

 U
se

Li
te

ra
cy

/T
u

to
ri

n
g 

R
o

o
m

 U
se

 (
p

at
ro

n
 c

o
u

n
t)

0
3

2
8

0
-1

0
0

.0
0

%

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
O

u
ts

id
e 

G
ro

u
p

s 
U

si
n

g 
M

ee
ti

n
g 

Sp
ac

e 
0

9
8

0
-1

0
0

.0
0

%

P
at

ro
n

s 
En

te
ri

n
g 

B
u

ild
in

g
6

,6
9

2
5

9
,3

3
8

2
6

,2
3

4
-5

5
.7

9
%

Fr
ie

n
d

's
 S

p
o

n
so

re
d

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
0

5
0

-1
0

0
.0

0
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

0
4

3
3

0
-1

0
0

.0
0

%
So

ci
al

 M
ed

ia
 U

se
Fa

ce
b

o
o

k 
(d

ai
ly

 p
ag

e 
co

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
)

6
7

0
6

,5
4

9
4

,5
7

8
-3

0
.1

0
%

Tw
it

te
r 

Fo
llo

w
e

rs
8

0
3

7
9

2
8

0
3

1
.3

9
%

In
st

ag
ra

m
 L

ik
es

4
3

0
3

,7
0

5
2

,6
6

4
-2

8
.1

0
%

Fl
ic

kr
 V

ie
w

s
3

,1
7

8
3

6
,6

5
8

2
8

,9
4

0
-2

1
.0

5
%

Yo
u

Tu
b

e 
V

ie
w

s
1

,9
8

8
2

,2
9

9
3

,6
1

7
5

7
.3

3
%

To
ta

l L
LD

 A
p

p
 D

o
w

n
lo

ad
s 

/ 
Se

ss
io

n
s

3
2

0
/1

,9
6

5
N

/A
 *

*
1

,1
1

6
/7

,0
7

4
--

* 
N

ew
 s

ta
tl

in
e 

fo
r 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

0
1

9
.

**
 "

D
o

w
n

lo
ad

s 
St

at
s"

 b
eg

an
 in

 D
ec

em
b

er
 2

0
1

9
 a

n
d

 "
Se

ss
io

n
s 

St
at

s"
 b

eg
an

 in
 J

an
u

ar
y 

2
0

2
0

.

41 



42 



43 



44 



 
 
 
Trustee Homework: 
Name five important reasons the LLD is renovating the facility. What enhancements are needed? What 
improvements are required? Anything else you'd like to express about the improvement project? 
Financial foresight? Fiscal projections? Long-term gains? What changes will positively impact user 
experiences?    

1. Studies and surveys have been done over a period of years indicating we need to do something 
to our current location or possible new location. Many of these can be found on the LLD Capital 
Projects page.  

2. The FQC Report outlines critical items and numerous other items that need to be completed 
with estimated costs. Identify items that need to be addressed at our current location. 

3. All reports and studies have indicated that we need more space for various areas in our current 
location. We need to highlight those areas. 

4. Due diligence was done in trying to find another location in the downtown area. No 
opportunities were of benefit to the LLD.  

5. Identify that the cost of renovation will not exceed a specific dollar amount and will not raise 
taxes. 

1. Financial foresight/prudent long-term fiscal responsibility and facility management (investing in 
renovations now to prevent costly repairs stemming from breakdowns and minimize 
maintenance costs over a longer term) 

2. Facilitate ability to best meet the needs of the entire community (universal design, COVID 
safety, restrooms, improved wayfinding, etc) 

3. Space optimization to fulfill the vision to enrich, educate and empower and reduce 
inefficiencies (dual use spaces, maker space, meeting room space, enhanced youth and 
dedicated teen space, improved staff space, room for right-sized collections in all departments) 

4. Achieves structural soundness to limit service interruptions or breakdowns (mitigates current 
challenges related to storm water/drainage, electrical, HVAC, plumbing, and any other concerns 
pertaining to physical plant configuration) 

5. It's what the community wants/has asked for 

1. Explain the Special Reserve Fund 
2. Explain how LLD will pay for the renovations.  How much our special reserves will contribute, 

how much may we need to finance, and how we will maintain a special reserve fund for 
unexpected future facility expenses.   

3. Changes that will positively impact user experiences: list the summary of current project 
parameters for concept phase - baseline project scope, interior space notes, and alternatives to 
be considered.    

4. History of how we got to renovation point (how/when we arrived at proposed renovation). 
Provide a timeline showing: 

a. LLD Strategic Plan dated 2011-2016. 

 

45 

https://www.lislelibrary.org/about-us/lld-capital-projects
https://www.lislelibrary.org/about-us/lld-capital-projects
https://www.lislelibrary.org/sites/default/files/assets/07-10-19%20FQC%20report%20final_.pdf


 

b. 2012-2016 Facilities Steering Committee Report.  In 2012 LLD was considering implementing 
a significant park lot project.  List projects discussed; Kingston property purchased; FQC 
report to Committee of the Whole; "essential projects" list consisting of best practices and 
operations projects in libraries comparing them to our current facility. 

c. Oct. 2014 Committee of the Whole presentation. 
d. Jan. 2016 Engberg Anderson LLD Strategic Facility Plan.  New building recommended. 
e. Last quarter of 2016 Facilities Steering Committee retired. 
f. Nov. 2017 LLD Community Engagement Process Final Report to Board. 
g. 2019-2022 LLD Strategic Plan developed.  17 facility improvements recommended. 
h. July 2019 LLD Facility Condition Assessment Report. 
i. August 2019 Technology Plan. 
j. During this time, the LLD elevator was deemed unsafe and needed replacement.  Also, it was 

determined that the air handlers could fail at any time and were replaced. 
k. Flaherty & Collins Developers approached LLD to gauge interest in LLD moving to a mixed-

development project at Family Square Shopping Center. 
l. LLD Board examined a confidential proposal for relocation to another Village site. 
m. LLD Board discussions regarding facility updates and space needs. 
n. Flaherty & Collins Family Square Shopping Center Development withdrawn, as well as 

confidential proposal for LLD relocation to another Village site. 
o. Late 2018 up to and including present date LLD board made decision to renovate existing 

facility and explore possible LLD addition.  Resulted in architect RFQ's.  Architect chosen at 
Oct. 2020 Board Meeting. 

5. Point out the clearly defined goals and objectives in the 2019-2022 Strategic Plan.  Again, 17 
facility improvements were identified.  Anyone paying attention would not be surprised the LLD 

Board has decided to proceed with a renovation. 

 

 
1. Accomplishments: Lowering taxes the last 3 years for a cumulative 18% with no decrease in 

hours or services.  
2. Renovating, not building a new building. Keeping Taxes the Same.  
3. Renovation will include catching-up on Deferred Maintenance such as correcting airflow in 

employee area, electric inside building, etc.    
4. Expanding Children's Area, including bathroom, Baby & Toddler Reading Programs, Craft 

Programs, proper space for employees, bring in more electricity for patron provided devices, 
etc.   

5. Expanding Technology for downloading audiobooks, ebooks, using WiFi, computer lab, security, 
etc. 

46 



 To
: L

LD
 F

in
a

n
ce

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
Fr

o
m

: T
a

ti
a

n
a

 W
ei

n
st

ei
n

 |
 L

LD
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

D
a

te
: N

o
ve

m
b

er
 1

3
, 2

0
2

0
 

 

•
Th

e 
Le

vy
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 in
d

ic
at

es
 t

h
e 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
m

o
n

ey
 a

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
re

q
u

es
ts

 v
ia

 p
ro

p
er

ty
 t

ax
es

.  

•
Fu

n
d

s 
th

at
 c

o
m

e 
vi

a 
th

e 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e 
av

ai
la

b
le

 u
n

ti
l t

h
e 

n
ex

t 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r.
 

•
Pe

r 
Ill

in
o

is
 la

w
, t

h
e 

Li
b

ra
ry

 L
ev

y 
ca

n
n

o
t 

ex
ce

e
d

 a
m

o
u

n
ts

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
ed

 in
 t

h
is

 y
ea

r’
s 

B
u

d
ge

t 
an

d
 

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
io

n
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 (
B

&
A

).
 

•
Th

e 
LL

D
 u

se
s 

th
e 

B
&

A
 t

o
 p

re
p

ar
e 

th
e 

Le
vy

. 

LE
V

Y

•
EA

V
 is

 t
h

e 
ac

ro
n

ym
 f

o
r:

 E
q

u
al

iz
ed

 A
ss

es
s 

V
al

u
e 

-
fo

r 
p

ro
p

er
ti

es
.  

•
Th

e 
EA

V
 is

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
u

n
ty

 a
ss

es
so

r 
an

d
 is

 u
se

d
 t

o
 a

llo
ca

te
 t

h
e 

ex
te

n
d

ed
 p

ro
p

er
ty

 t
ax

es
.

EA
V

•
TI

TA
 is

 t
h

e 
ac

ro
n

ym
 f

o
r:

 T
ru

th
 in

 T
ax

at
io

n
 A

ct
.  

•
Th

e 
TI

TA
 s

et
s 

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
fo

r 
P

u
b

lic
 N

o
ti

ce
 a

n
d

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

gs
 if

 a
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

re
q

u
es

ts
 a

 le
vy

 in
cr

ea
se

 g
re

at
er

 t
h

an
 

1
0

5
%

 o
f 

th
e 

p
ri

o
r 

ye
ar

’s
 e

xt
en

si
o

n
.

TI
TA

•
P

TE
LL

 is
 t

h
e 

ac
ro

n
ym

 f
o

r 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 T
ax

 E
xt

en
si

o
n

 L
im

it
at

io
n

 L
aw

•
P

TE
LL

 is
 c

o
m

m
o

n
ly

 r
ef

er
re

d
 t

o
 a

s 
th

e 
ta

x 
ca

p
. I

t 
lim

it
s 

th
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 p

ro
p

er
ty

 t
ax

 e
xt

en
si

o
n

s 
to

 5
%

 o
r 

th
e 

C
o

n
su

m
er

 P
ri

ce
 In

d
ex

 (
C

P
I)

, w
h

ic
h

ev
er

 is
 le

ss
.

P
TE

LL

47 



48 

weinstein
Highlight

weinstein
Typewriter
2019 

weinstein
Typewriter
3,986,500.00 | 2020 REQUEST

weinstein
Typewriter

weinstein
Typewriter



Lisle Township
John Trowbridge, Assessor

2020 Estimated New Construction & Destruction

18560000 - Lisle Library Dist

7,453,810

220,480

ESTIMATED NEW CONSTRUCTION:

ESTIMATED NEW DESTRUCTION:

WARNING:  

The figure given in this report is an estimate only and is subject to change prior to the time the final tax
rate are computed.

•

This figure does not include changes or adjustments by the Supervisor of Assessments, the Board of
Review, or any possible State Equalizers.

•

This figure represents the Assessor's estimate for new construction for that portion of your district
located within the Lisle Township boundaries.

•

This figure does not adjust for the newly annexed or disconnected properties.•

To estimate your available extension increase (due to new construction) you must know last year's          
total EAV and divide this figure into this year's new construction figure (be sure to consider your          
district's total new construction, not just for the new construction in the Lisle Township portion          
of your district.          
          
                         THIS YEAR'S NEW CONSTRUCTION     
                        LAST YEAR'S EAV                                               = %    
          
If you increase last years's extension by the above percentage figure and file this increase as your           
levy, the property taxes will not be increased on existing property owners in your district due to           
your levy.          
          
If you increase last year's extension more than the above percentage figure, property taxes will          
be increased on existing properties in your district due to your levy.          
          
If you levy the above percentage figure plus 5% (or CPI), you can estimate the maximum extension           
increase your district can expect and this will increase property taxes on all properties in the district.        

We hope this report will be of some value to you as you consider your tax levy for this year.  
More accurate and final data will not be available until after the Board of Review has concluded its  
hearings and the Department of Revenue has concluded its equalization process. Remember,  
this new construction figure is an unofficial estimate only.

Page 1 of 110/19/2020 2020(C) Assessors IMS

49 



Li
sl

e 
To

w
ns

hi
p

Jo
hn

 T
ro

w
br

id
ge

, A
ss

es
so

r

As
se

ss
m

en
t C

ha
ng

e 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

Re
po

rt
 B

y 
Ta

x 
Bo

dy

18
56

00
00

 - 
Lis

le
 L

ib
ra

ry
 D

ist

Pr
op

er
ty

 C
la

ss
20

20
 P

ar
ce

l 
Co

un
t

20
20

 T
ot

al
 

Va
lu

e
20

19
 T

ot
al

 
Va

lu
e

20
19

 P
ar

ce
l 

Co
un

t

Co
m

m
er

cia
l

46
6

40
3,

02
6,

52
5

37
9,

99
0,

06
6

47
1

In
du

st
ria

l
12

3
49

,8
74

,1
80

46
,9

35
,4

90
12

3

Re
sid

en
tia

l
9,

88
3

97
0,

16
6,

87
0

92
7,

34
7,

68
0

9,
88

4

10
,4

72
To

ta
ls

:
1,

35
4,

27
3,

23
6

1,
42

3,
06

7,
57

5
10

,4
78

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 1
10

/1
9/

20
20

(C
)2

02
0 

As
se

ss
or

s 
IM

S

50 



51 



52 



53 



54 



 

 

Policy 606 
Public Health Response 

 
The purpose of this Policy is to affirm the LLD’s commitment to providing a safe and healthy environment 
in the event of a public health emergency. If a public health emergency is declared, the LLD will respond 
and implement operational measures consistent with recommendations from the Center for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC), Illinois Public Health Department (IDPH), DuPage County Health 
Department (DCHD), or other appropriate authorities.  
 
To that end, the Library Director, in consultation with the Board President, shall assess the circumstances 
of the public health emergency and the LLD’s preparedness and response to the public health emergency, 
including but not limited to: 
 
1. Identifying and implementing appropriate health and safety measures and resources. 

 
2. Initiating appropriate communication protocols with the public, LLD Board of Trustees, staff, and 

other relevant individuals or agencies. 
 

3. Considering possible operational needs or adjustments, which may include a temporary closure of LLD 
facilities or limited hours/services. 

 
The LLD Director shall administer operational measures in accordance with this policy. 
 
 
 
 

Adopted 11/18/20 

55 



 

 

Policy 606 
Public Health Response 

 
The purpose of this Policy is to affirm the LLD’s commitment to providing a safe and healthy environment 
in the event of a public health emergency. If a public health emergency is declared, the LLD will respond 
and implement operational measures consistent with recommendations from the Center for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC), Illinois Public Health Department (IDPH), DuPage County Health 
Department (DCHD), or other appropriate authorities.  
 
To that end, the Library Director, in consultation with the Board President, shall assess the circumstances 
of the public health emergency and the LLD’s preparedness and response to the public health emergency, 
including but not limited to: 
 

1. Identifying and implementing appropriate health and safety measures and resources. 
 

2. Initiating appropriate communication protocols with the public, LLD Board of Trustees, staff, and 
other relevant individuals or agencies. 
 

3. Considering possible operational needs or adjustments, which may include a temporary closure 
of LLD facilities or limited hours/services. 

 
The LLD Director shall administer organizational procedures operational measures in accordance with this 
policy. 
 
 
 
 

Adopted 11/__/20 

56 



 

 

 
Administrative Measures Related to LLD Policy 606: Public Health Response 

 
The purpose of this document is to provide guidelines that may be taken by the LLD in response to a public 
health emergency.  
 
In all cases of a public health emergency, the LLD will prepare for and respond consistent with the 
recommendations from the Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), Illinois Public Health 
Department (IDPH), DuPage County Health Department (DCHD), or other appropriate authorities. 
 
The Library Director shall assess (and reassess as applicable) the circumstances of the public health 
emergency and, as appropriate, initiate one or more the following protocols: 
 
In addition to adhering to the recommendations from the CDC, IDPH, DuPage County Health Department, 
and other public health authorities, the LLD Director will consider taking any of the following steps, after 
assessing the circumstances of the public health emergency, to prepare for and respond to a public health 
emergency: 
 
1.  Readiness Measures 

a. To the extent possible, procure appropriate cleaning and sanitization supplies and personal 
protective equipment (PPE) for facility/staff. Strive to have surplus in stock at all times. 

b. To the extent possible, provide appropriate sanitation supplies to all public and staff areas. 
c. Perform routine cleaning of frequently touched surfaces such as workstations, countertops, 

bannisters, and door knobs. 
d. Contract with or recommend to the Board to contract with professional cleaning company for 

daily cleaning/sanitation services. Increase/decrease service hours/work as needed.  
 
2. Communications to the Public, LLD Board, and Staff 

a. Alert staff and the public, which includes intergovernmental bodies and other relevant 
organizational groups, of any major LLD operational adjustments via website, social media 
platforms, mailings/emails, health and safety measures, internal signage, etc.  

b. Identify relevant and reputable health/emergency resources within the facility, via social media 
platforms, and website.  

c. Promptly notify the LLD Board President and all Trustees of situations that may impact operations. 
d. Enable appropriate technological configurations such as virtual meeting arrangements, in 

accordance with State law/Open Meetings Act (OMA), to ensure LLD Board/Committee meetings 
can be held.  

e. Contact program registrants, meeting room users, relevant organizations, etc., to notify of 
operational adjustments that may impact their use of the LLD. 

f. Ensure important/emergency information is disseminated to staff in a timely manner via chain of 
command.  

g. Conduct staff meetings to communicate pertinent information.  
h. Regularly connect with staff as to their well-being and inquire about potential symptoms or 

contacts related to the public health emergency. 
i. If applicable, instruct staff to stay home when sick. Comply with any applicable isolation or 

quarantine protocols. 
 
 

57 



 

 

 
3. Potential Library Operational Adjustments While Open 

a. Suspend certain services to avoid large gatherings or person-to-person contact such as 
programming, meeting/study room use, home delivery, volunteering, outreach, etc. 

b. Arrange and/or limit public seating within facility to accommodate social/physical distancing. 
c. To the extent possible, provide supplemental PPE such as acrylic shields/barriers and area 

stanchions. 
d. If feasible, provide courtesy PPE for patrons entering facility.  
e. Increase directional/informative signage within facility. 
f. Restrict number of patrons within facility at one time. 
g. Alter staff work schedules and workspaces to accommodate social/physical distancing. 
h. Institute the quarantining of materials. 
i. Provide a grace period or extension for due dates.  
j. Enable curbside pick-up service option. 
k. Cancel all library-related travel in accordance with guidance issued by federal, state or local health 

authorities.  
l. Assess and comply with isolation or quarantine protocols as implemented by the federal, state 

and local health departments.  
m. Director shall evaluate related staffing issues and relevant operational adjustments.  
n. Establish new procedures as required/needed, in consultation with the Board President.  

 
4. External Factors That May Affect LLD Operations 

a. Employees shall notify their supervisor if they are leaving the area/state for vacation/travel if a 
public health emergency has been declared for that area.  

b. Employees who travel to locations that have been deemed “hot-spots” by government/public 
health agencies, may be asked to self-quarantine and secure a medical note/test to determine it 
is safe to return to work.   

c. Employees who may have come into contact with someone exhibiting symptoms related to the 
declared health emergency may be asked to self-quarantine and secure a medical note/test to 
determine it is safe to return to work.   

 
5. Temporary Closure 

a. Comply with LLD Policy 605: Emergency Closure of Library 
b. If the closure is extended, Director shall assess and assign staff responsibilities to ensure LLD 

operations, communications, and systems are properly maintained. 
c. Establish new procedures as required/needed in consultation with Board President.    

 
The LLD Director/Board of Trustees may adjust any of the above to meet the needs of an emergency to 
ensure the safety, health, and general welfare of the public and staff. 
 
 
 

Dated: 11/18/20 

58 



 

 

 
Administrative Procedure Measures Related to LLD Policy 606: Public Health Response 

 
The purpose of this procedure document is to provide a guidelines for steps which that may be taken by 
the LLD in response to a public health emergency.  
 
In all cases of a public health emergency, the LLD will prepare for and respond consistent with the 
recommendations from the Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), Illinois Public Health 
Department (IDPH), DuPage County Health Department (DCHD), or other appropriate authorities. 
 
The Library Director shall assess (and reassess as applicable) the circumstances of the public health 
emergency and, as appropriate, initiate one or more the following protocols: 
 
In addition to adhering to the recommendations from the CDC, IDPH, DuPage County Health Department, 
and other public health authorities, the LLD Director will consider taking any of the following steps, after 
assessing the circumstances of the public health emergency, to prepare for and respond to a public health 
emergency: 
 

1.  Readiness Measures 
a. To the extent possible, procure appropriate cleaning and sanitization supplies and personal 

protective equipment (PPE) for facility/staff. Strive to have surplus in stock at all times. 
b. To the extent possible, provide appropriate sanitation supplies to all public and staff areas. 
c. Perform routine cleaning of frequently touched surfaces such as workstations, countertops, 

bannisters, and door knobs. 
d. Contract with or recommend to the Board to contract with professional cleaning company for 

daily cleaning/sanitation services. Increase/decrease service hours/work as needed.  
 

2. Communications to the Public, LLD Board, and Staff 
a. Alert staff and the public, which includes intergovernmental bodies and other relevant 

organizational groups, of any major LLD operational adjustments via website, social media 
platforms, mailings/emails, health and safety measures, internal signage, etc.  

b. Identify relevant and reputable health/emergency resources within the facility, via social 
media platforms, and website.  

c. Timely Promptly notify the LLD Board President and all Trustees of situations that may impact 
operations. 

d. Enable appropriate technological configurations such as virtual meeting arrangements, in 
accordance with State law/Open Meetings Act (OMA), to ensure LLD Board/Committee 
meetings can be held.  

e. Contact program registrants, meeting room users, relevant organizations, etc., to notify of 
operational adjustments that may impact their use of the LLD. 

f. Ensure important/emergency information is disseminated to staff in a timely manner via 
chain of command.  

g. Conduct staff meetings to communicate pertinent information.  
h. Regularly connect with staff as to their well-being and inquire about potential symptoms or 

contacts related to the public health emergency. 
i. If applicable, instruct staff to stay home when sick. Comply with any applicable isolation or 

quarantine protocols. 
 

59 



 

 

 
 

3. Potential Library Operational Adjustments While Open 
a. Suspend certain services to avoid large gatherings or person-to-person contact such as 

programming, meeting/study room use, home delivery, volunteering, outreach, etc. 
b. Arrange and/or limit public seating within facility to accommodate social/physical distancing. 
c. To the extent possible, provide supplemental PPE such as acrylic shields/barriers and area 

stanchions. 
d. If feasible, provide courtesy PPE for patrons entering facility.  
e. Increase directional/informative signage within facility. 
f. Restrict number of patrons within facility at one time. 
g. Alter staff work schedules and workspaces to accommodate social/physical distancing. 
h. Institute the quarantining of materials. 
i. Provide a grace period or extension for due dates.  
j. Enable curbside pick-up service option. 
k. Cancel all library-related travel in accordance with guidance issued by federal, state or local 

health authorities.  
l. Assess and comply with isolation or quarantine protocols as implemented by the federal, 

state and local health departments.  
m. Director shall evaluate related staffing issues and relevant operational adjustments. 

Quarantine consistent with any federal, state, and local regulations. 
n. Establish new procedures as required/needed, in consultation with the Board President.  

 
 

4. External Factors That May Affect LLD Operations 
a. Employees shall notify their supervisor if they are leaving the area/state for vacation/travel 

if a public health emergency has been declared for that area.  
b. Employees who travel to locations that have been deemed “hot-spots” by 

government/public health agencies, may be asked to self-quarantine and secure a medical 
note/test to determine it is safe to return to work.   

c. Employees who may have come into contact with someone exhibiting symptoms related to 
the declared health emergency may be asked to self-quarantine and secure a medical 
note/test to determine it is safe to return to work.   

 
5. Temporary Closure 

a. Comply with LLD Policy 605: Emergency Closure of Library 
b. If the closure is extended, Director shall assess and assign staff responsibilities to ensure LLD 

operations, communications, and systems are properly maintained. 
c. Establish new procedures as required/needed in consultation with Board President.    

 
The LLD Director/Board of Trustees may adjust any of the above to meet the needs of an emergency to 
ensure the safety, health, and general welfare of the public and staff. 
 
 
 

Dated: 11/__/20 

60 



 

 

LLD Administrative Procedure:  
Families First Coronavirus Response Act 

 
The Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) (tinyurl.com/yx5jtyv8), requires the LLD to provide 
eligible employees with new, temporary paid leave benefits when an employee is unable to work or 
telework for reasons related to COVID-19 (Coronavirus). Paid leave benefits under the FFCRA include 
qualifying leave for eligible employees under the Emergency Paid Sick Leave Act (EPSLA) and the 
Emergency Family and Medical Leave Expansion Act (EFMLEA). 
 
This document outlines the LLD’s procedure for determining an employee’s eligibility for leave under the 
FFCRA, calculating the amount of leave, and calculating the appropriate pay. 
 
This administrative procedure and the FFCRA expire on December 31, 2020. This administrative procedure 
is subject to change, without notice, based on amendments to the FFCRA or other federal, state, or local 
laws. 
 
A. Eligibility 
 
EPSLA. Provided the employee is scheduled to work or LLD has work available for the employee, full- and 
part-time employees are entitled to emergency paid sick leave if the employee is unable to work or 
telework because he/she: 
 

1. Is subject to a federal, state or local quarantine/isolation order related to COVID-19; 
 
2. Has been advised by a health care provider to quarantine due to concerns related to 

COVID-19; 
 
3. Is experiencing symptoms of COVID-19 and seeking a medical diagnosis; 
 

4. Is caring for an individual who is subject to a quarantine order or advisement by a 
health care provider, as described above; or 

 

5. Is caring for his or her child if the school or place of care of the child has been closed, 
has limited, essential services, or the childcare provider of such child is unavailable, 
due to COVID-19; 

 

6. Is experiencing any other substantially similar condition specified by the Secretary of 
Health and Human Services. 

 
Full-time employees are entitled to up to a maximum of two (2) weeks (80 hours) of qualifying leave under 
the EPSLA and part-time employees are entitled to up to a maximum of the number of hours they normally 
work, on average, over a 2-week period. 
 
EFMLEA. Full- and part-time employees who have been employed for at least thirty (30) days prior to their 
leave request are eligible for up to an additional ten (10) weeks of leave under the EFMLEA for qualifying 
reason #5 above, provided the employee is scheduled to work or the LLD has work available for the 
employee. 

61 



 

 

 
 
B. Documentation 

 
An employee requesting leave under the FFCRA is required to provide the LLD Director or his/her designee 
with the following information when requesting leave: 
 
For all qualifying reasons: The employee must provide their name, proposed leave date(s), qualifying 
reason for leave (1-6 above), and an oral/written statement that the employee is unable to work or 
telework because of the qualifying reason for leave. Information provided orally by an employee shall be 
followed by a written statement within 72 hours, unless otherwise informed by the LLD Director or his/her 
designee. 

 
Additional information, depending on the reasons for leave: 

 
1. For qualifying reasons A1 and A4, the name of the government entity that issued the quarantine 

or isolation order. 
2. For qualifying reasons A2 and A4, the name of the health care provider. 
3. For qualifying reason A4, the name of the individual and the employee’s relationship to the 

individual. 
4. For qualifying reason A5, the name and age of the child (or children) to be cared for, the name of 

the school that has been closed or place of care that is unavailable, and a statement that no other 
suitable person is available to care for the child during the period for which the employee is on 
leave. 

 
The LLD will maintain all records related to an employee’s request for, grant of, or denial of leave under 
the FFCRA for a period of not less than four (4) years. 
 
 
C. Response to Request for Leave 

 
The LLD Director or designee will respond to an employee’s request for leave under the FFCRA. If 
approved, the response will include the amount of leave the employee is entitled to for the qualifying 
reason and their respective pay rate for this leave under the FFCRA.  
 
 
D. Calculating the Amount of Leave 

 
EPSLA. The LLD is responsible for calculating an eligible employee’s leave entitlement under the EPSLA, as 
follows: 

 
1. Full-time employees = up to two (2) weeks (80 hours) of leave under the EPSLA. Full-time 

employees include those: 
 

a. Normally scheduled to work at least forty (40) hours each workweek; and 
b. Whose average number of hours per workweek (including hours taken for any type 

of leave) is at least forty (40) hours over a period that is the lesser of: the 6-month 

62 



 

 

period ending on the date the employee takes the leave or the entire period of 
employment. 

 
2. For part-time employees with a normal weekly schedule = up to the number of hours the 

employee is scheduled to work over two (2) workweeks of leave under the EPSLA. 
 

3. For part-time employees that lack a normal schedule: 
 

a. Employed at least 6 months = up to the number of hours equal to 14 times the average 
number of hours the employee was scheduled to work (including hours taken for any type of 
leave) each calendar day over the 6 month period ending on the date on which the employee 
takes the leave. 

b. Employed fewer than 6 months = up to 14 times the number of hours agreed to at the time 
of hiring that the employee would work, on average, each calendar day. Absent an agreement, 
up to 14 times the average number of hours per calendar day that the employee was 
scheduled to work over the entire period of employment (including hours taken for any type 
of leave). 

 
EFMLEA. After the expiration of an employee’s leave under the EPSLA as calculated above, employees 
who have been employed for at least 30 days prior to the leave request are eligible for an additional 10 
weeks of EFMLEA leave for qualifying reason 5. 
 
E. Calculating the Pay Rate 

 
Per the FFCRA, the LLD will use the employee’s “weighted average regular rate” to calculate pay for leave 
taken under the FFCRA, or the applicable minimum wage rate if more. 

 
1. Weighted Average Regular Rate: Add up all compensation over the relevant period (the lesser 

of the 6-month period ending on the date the employee first takes leave or the entire term 
of employment) and divide that sum by all hours worked over the same period. 

 
a. Qualifying reasons 1-3. Pay for leave under the EPSLA taken for qualify reasons 1-3 is 

capped at $511 per day per employee ($5,110 in aggregate). 
b. Qualifying reasons 4 and 6. For qualifying reason 4 and 6, paid leave is 2/3 of 

employee’s pay rate (as calculated above) and is capped at $200 per day per 
employee ($2,000 in aggregate). 

c. Qualifying reason 5. For qualifying reason 5, paid leave is 2/3 of the employee’s pay 
rate (as calculated above) and is capped at $200 per day per employee ($2,000 in the 
aggregate or $12,000 in aggregate when the employee is eligible for the additional 10 
weeks under the EFMLEA). 

 
 

Dated: 11/18/20 

63 



 

 

LLD Administrative Procedure:  
Families First Coronavirus Response Act 

 
The Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) (tinyurl.com/yx5jtyv8), requires the LLD to provide 
eligible employees with new, temporary paid leave benefits when an employee is unable to work or 
telework for reasons related to COVID-19 (Coronavirus). Paid leave benefits under the FFCRA include 
qualifying leave for eligible employees under the Emergency Paid Sick Leave Act (EPSLA) and the 
Emergency Family and Medical Leave Expansion Act (EFMLEA). 
 
This document outlines the LLD’s procedure for determining an employee’s eligibility for leave under the 
FFCRA, calculating the amount of leave, and calculating the appropriate pay. 
 
This administrative procedure and the FFCRA expire on December 31, 2020. This administrative procedure 
is subject to change, without notice, based on amendments to the FFCRA or other federal, state, or local 
laws. 
 
A. Eligibility 
 
EPSLA. Provided the employee is scheduled to work or LLD has work available for the employee, full- and 
part-time employees are entitled to emergency paid sick leave if the employee is unable to work or 
telework because he/she: 
 

1. Is subject to a federal, state or local quarantine/isolation order related to COVID-19; 
 
2. Has been advised by a health care provider to quarantine due to concerns related to 

COVID-19; 
 
3. Is experiencing symptoms of COVID-19 and seeking a medical diagnosis; 
 

4. Is caring for an individual who is subject to a quarantine order or advisement by a 
health care provider, as described above; or 

 

5. Is caring for his or her child if the school or place of care of the child has been closed, 
has limited, essential services, or the childcare provider of such child is unavailable, 
due to COVID-19; 

 

6. Is experiencing any other substantially similar condition specified by the Secretary of 
Health and Human Services. 

 
Full-time employees are entitled to up to a maximum of two (2) weeks (80 hours) of qualifying leave under 
the EPSLA and part-time employees are entitled to up to a maximum of the number of hours they normally 
work, on average, over a 2-week period. 
 
EFMLEA. Full- and part-time employees who have been employed for at least thirty (30) days prior to their 
leave request are eligible for up to an additional ten (10) weeks of leave under the EFMLEA for qualifying 
reason #5 above, provided the employee is scheduled to work or the LLD has work available for the 
employee. 

64 



 

 

 
 
B. Documentation 

 
An employee requesting leave under the FFCRA is required to provide the LLD Director or his/her designee 
with the following information when requesting leave: 
 
For all qualifying reasons: The employee must provide their name, proposed leave date(s), qualifying 
reason for leave (1-6 above), and an oral/written statement that the employee is unable to work or 
telework because of the qualifying reason for leave. Information provided orally by an employee shall be 
followed by a written statement within 72 hours, unless otherwise informed by the LLD Director or his/her 
designee. 

 
Additional information, depending on the reasons for leave: 

 
1. For qualifying reasons A1 and A4, the name of the government entity that issued the quarantine 

or isolation order. 
2. For qualifying reasons A2 and A4, the name of the health care provider. 
3. For qualifying reason A4, the name of the individual and the employee’s relationship to the 

individual. 
4. For qualifying reason A5, the name and age of the child (or children) to be cared for, the name of 

the school that has been closed or place of care that is unavailable, and a statement that no other 
suitable person is available to care for the child during the period for which the employee is on 
leave. 

 
The LLD will maintain all records related to an employee’s request for, grant of, or denial of leave under 
the FFCRA for a period of not less than four (4) years. 
 
 
C. Response to Request for Leave 

 
The LLD Director or designee will respond to an employee’s request for leave under the FFCRA. If 
approved, the response will include the amount of leave the employee is entitled to for the qualifying 
reason and their respective pay rate for this leave under the FFCRA.  
 
 
D. Calculating the Amount of Leave 

 
EPSLA. The LLD is responsible for calculating an eligible employee’s leave entitlement under the EPSLA, as 
follows: 

 
1. Full-time employees = up to two (2) weeks (80 hours) of leave under the EPSLA. Full-time 

employees include those: 
 

a. Normally scheduled to work at least forty (40) hours each workweek; and 
b. Whose average number of hours per workweek (including hours taken for any type 

of leave) is at least forty (40) hours over a period that is the lesser of: the 6-month 

65 



 

 

period ending on the date the employee takes the leave or the entire period of 
employment. 

 
2. For part-time employees with a normal weekly schedule = up to the number of hours the 

employee is scheduled to work over two (2) workweeks of leave under the EPSLA. 
 

3. For part-time employees that lack a normal schedule: 
 

a. Employed at least 6 months = up to the number of hours equal to 14 times the average 
number of hours the employee was scheduled to work (including hours taken for any type of 
leave) each calendar day over the 6 month period ending on the date on which the employee 
takes the leave. 

b. Employed fewer than 6 months = up to 14 times the number of hours agreed to at the time 
of hiring that the employee would work, on average, each calendar day. Absent an agreement, 
up to 14 times the average number of hours per calendar day that the employee was 
scheduled to work over the entire period of employment (including hours taken for any type 
of leave). 

 
EFMLEA. After the expiration of an employee’s leave under the EPSLA as calculated above, employees 
who have been employed for at least 30 days prior to the leave request are eligible for an additional 10 
weeks of EFMLEA leave for qualifying reason 5. 
 
E. Calculating the Pay Rate 

 
Per the FFCRA, the LLD will use the employee’s “weighted average regular rate” to calculate pay for leave 
taken under the FFCRA, or the applicable minimum wage rate if more. 

 
1. Weighted Average Regular Rate: Add up all compensation over the relevant period (the lesser 

of the 6-month period ending on the date the employee first takes leave or the entire term 
of employment) and divide that sum by all hours worked over the same period. 

 
a. Qualifying reasons 1-3. Pay for leave under the EPSLA taken for qualify reasons 1-3 is 

capped at $511 per day per employee ($5,110 in aggregate). 
b. Qualifying reasons 4 and 6. For qualifying reason 4 and 6, paid leave is 2/3 of 

employee’s pay rate (as calculated above) and is capped at $200 per day per 
employee ($2,000 in aggregate). 

c. Qualifying reason 5. For qualifying reason 5, paid leave is 2/3 of the employee’s pay 
rate (as calculated above) and is capped at $200 per day per employee ($2,000 in the 
aggregate or $12,000 in aggregate when the employee is eligible for the additional 10 
weeks under the EFMLEA). 

 
 

Dated: 11/18/20 

66 



F https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/ 

Coronavirus R  
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/pandemic/ffcra-employee-paid-leave 

Families First Coronavirus 

Response Act: Employee 

Paid Leave Rightsct: 

Employee Paid Leave Rights 
The Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA or Act) requires 
certain employers to provide employees with paid sick leave or expanded family 
and medical leave for specified reasons related to COVID-19. The Department of 
Labor’s (Department) Wage and Hour Division (WHD) administers and enforces 
the new law’s paid leave requirements. These provisions will apply from the 
effective date through December 31, 2020. 

Generally, the Act provides that employees of covered employers are eligible for: 

 Two weeks (up to 80 hours) of paid sick leave at the employee’s regular rate of pay 

where the employee is unable to work because the employee is quarantined (pursuant 

to Federal, State, or local government order or advice of a health care provider), and/or 

experiencing COVID-19 symptoms and seeking a medical diagnosis; or 

 Two weeks (up to 80 hours) of paid sick leave at two-thirds the employee’s regular 

rate of pay because the employee is unable to work because of a bona fide need to 

care for an individual subject to quarantine (pursuant to Federal, State, or local 

government order or advice of a health care provider), or to care for a child (under 18 

years of age) whose school or child care provider is closed or unavailable for reasons 

related to COVID-19, and/or the employee is experiencing a substantially similar 

condition as specified by the Secretary of Health and Human Services, in consultation 

with the Secretaries of the Treasury and Labor; and 

67 



 Up to an additional 10 weeks of paid expanded family and medical leave at two-

thirds the employee’s regular rate of pay where an employee, who has been employed 

for at least 30 calendar days, is unable to work due to a bona fide need for leave to 

care for a child whose school or child care provider is closed or unavailable for reasons 

related to COVID-19. 

Covered Employers: The paid sick leave and expanded family and medical 
leave provisions of the FFCRA apply to certain public employers, and private 
employers with fewer than 500 employees.[1] Most employees of the federal 
government are covered by Title II of the Family and Medical Leave Act, which 
was not amended by this Act, and are therefore not covered by the expanded 
family and medical leave provisions of the FFCRA. However, federal employees 
covered by Title II of the Family and Medical Leave Act are covered by the paid 
sick leave provision.  

Small businesses with fewer than 50 employees may qualify for exemption from 
the requirement to provide leave due to school closings or child care 
unavailability if the leave requirements would jeopardize the viability of the 
business as a going concern. 

Eligible Employees: All employees of covered employers are eligible for two 
weeks of paid sick time for specified reasons related to COVID-19. Employees 
employed for at least 30 days are eligible for up to an additional 10 weeks of paid 
family leave to care for a child under certain circumstances related to COVID-
19.[2] 

Notice: Where leave is foreseeable, an employee should provide notice of leave 
to the employer as is practicable. After the first workday of paid sick time, an 
employer may require employees to follow reasonable notice procedures in order 
to continue receiving paid sick time. 

Qualifying Reasons for Leave: 

Under the FFCRA, an employee qualifies for paid sick time if the employee is 
unable to work (or unable to telework) due to a need for leave because the 
employee: 

1. is subject to a Federal, State, or local quarantine or isolation order related to COVID-

19; 

2. has been advised by a health care provider to self-quarantine related to COVID-19; 

3. is experiencing COVID-19 symptoms and is seeking a medical diagnosis; 

68 

https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/pandemic/ffcra-employee-paid-leave#_ftn1
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/pandemic/ffcra-employee-paid-leave#_ftn2


4. is caring for an individual subject to an order described in (1) or self-quarantine as 

described in (2); 

5. is caring for a child whose school or place of care is closed (or child care provider is 

unavailable) for reasons related to COVID-19; or 

6. is experiencing any other substantially-similar condition specified by the Secretary of 

Health and Human Services, in consultation with the Secretaries of Labor and 

Treasury. 

Under the FFCRA, an employee qualifies for expanded family leave if the 
employee is caring for a child whose school or place of care is closed (or child 
care provider is unavailable) for reasons related to COVID-19. 

Duration of Leave: 

For reasons (1)-(4) and (6): A full-time employee is eligible for 80 hours of 
leave, and a part-time employee is eligible for the number of hours of leave that 
the employee works on average over a two-week period. 

 
For reason (5): A full-time employee is eligible for up to 12 weeks of leave (two 
weeks of paid sick leave followed by up to 10 weeks of paid expanded family & 
medical leave) at 40 hours a week, and a part-time employee is eligible for leave 
for the number of hours that the employee is normally scheduled to work over 
that period. 

Calculation of Pay:[3] 

For leave reasons (1), (2), or (3): employees taking leave are entitled to pay at 
either their regular rate or the applicable minimum wage, whichever is higher, up 
to $511 per day and $5,110 in the aggregate (over a 2-week period). 

 
For leave reasons (4) or (6): employees taking leave are entitled to pay at 2/3 
their regular rate or 2/3 the applicable minimum wage, whichever is higher, up to 
$200 per day and $2,000 in the aggregate (over a 2-week period). 

 
For leave reason (5): employees taking leave are entitled to pay at 2/3 their 
regular rate or 2/3 the applicable minimum wage, whichever is higher, up to $200 
per day and $12,000 in the aggregate (over a 12-week period).  [4] 

  

69 

https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/pandemic/ffcra-employee-paid-leave#_ftn3
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/pandemic/ffcra-employee-paid-leave#_ftn4


 

[1] Certain provisions may not apply to certain employers with fewer than 50 
employees. See Department FFCRA regulations (expected April 2020). 
[2] Under the Act, special rules apply for Health Care Providers and Emergency 
Responders. 
[3] Paid sick time provided under this Act does not carryover from one year to the 
next. Employees are not entitled to reimbursement for unused leave upon 
termination, resignation, retirement, or other separation from employment. 
[4] An employee may elect to substitute any accrued vacation leave, personal 
leave, or medical or sick leave for the first two weeks of partial paid leave under 
this section. 
 

 

 

70 

https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/pandemic/ffcra-employee-paid-leave#_ftnref1
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/pandemic/ffcra-employee-paid-leave#_ftnref2
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/pandemic/ffcra-employee-paid-leave#_ftnref3
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/pandemic/ffcra-employee-paid-leave#_ftnref4


 

 

1 3 0  E a s t  R a n d o l p h ,  S u i t e  3 1 0 0 ,  C h i c a g o  I L  6 0 6 0 1            3 1 2 . 6 3 3 . 2 9 0 0             s n h - a . c o m  

OWNER-ARCHITECT PROPOSAL / AGREEMENT  

 

Project: Lisle Library Concept Design Phase  Date:  12 November 2020 

   777 Front Street       

   Lisle, IL 60532   

 
Owner:  Lisle Library District      Architect: Sheehan Nagle Hartray Architects, Ltd. 

   777 Front Street          130 East Randolph, Suite 3100 

Lisle, IL 60532          Chicago, IL 60601   

 

 

If the terms of this Proposal are found to be acceptable, then it shall become the Agreement between the 
Owner and the Architect (SNHA). 
 

 

Initial Information: 

Owner Contact: Tatiana Weinstein, Lisle Library District 
 
Owner’s Representative Contact: Marc Rogers, CCS International 
 
Architect Contact: Eric Penney, Sheehan Nagle Hartray Architects 
 
Professional Services Included in the Agreement: Architecture, interior design, and civil engineering. 
 
Professional Services Provided by Others: Cost estimating services to be provided CCS International under a 
separate agreement with the Owner. Professional services for mechanical, electrical, plumbing, fire protection and 
structural engineering and/or technology/audio-visual consulting services may be added to the project scope if 
required to estimate the cost of construction. 
 
Project Schedule: Services will commence upon signature of this Agreement. Preliminary schedule of Program 
Definition and Concept Design process is attached. 
 
Project Site: Existing library property.  
 
Miscellaneous: The Owner will provide documentation of the existing building and library property. The Owner 
will contract separately for topographical surveys and/or geotechnical assessments if they are required to provide 
preliminary civil engineering.  
 
Project Parameters: Included as Exhibit ‘A’ (LLD – Preliminary Project Parameters dated 10-1-2020) are the 
concept phase parameters as identified by the Lisle Library District.  
 
 
Basic Services Included in this Agreement: 

Program Definition:   

SNHA, together with the Owner, will define a program, which will set forth Owner’s objectives, schedule, 
constraints and criteria, including space requirements, relationships, flexibility, expandability, special equipment, 
systems and site requirements. Visioning and programming meetings will be held with key staff. Programming 
efforts will consider past studies, benchmarking and surveys. 

71 



 

 

  2  

Preliminary Civil Engineering:   

Scope of  civil engineering services, provided by Eriksson Engineering Associates, includes assessment of  existing 
storm water management conditions, assistance in the development of  site strategies for the preliminary concepts, 
development of  a site strategy for selected concept and pricing information for estimating construction cost.  
 
Concept Development:   

Based on objectives, priorities and space needs identified through Program Definition, Architect will prepare 
multiple concept site and floor plans (including conceptual furniture layouts) that will illustrate proposed 
remodeling and/or expansion of  the Library accounting for building, site and building system constraints and 
opportunities. Architect together with the Library will select a concept for development and cost estimating. The 
selected concept will include site plan, floor plans, elevations, sections and/or massing studies that communicate 
the design intent. Two initial phasing options will be developed for the selected scheme, 1) single-phase 
construction where the Owner temporarily relocated operations and 2) a multi-phase construction with the Owner 
continuing to occupy and operate the existing building during construction. The Architect shall also identify zoning 
code nonconformities in the developed concept. Zoning variance preparation and submittal is excluded from 
concept design phase services. 
 
Public Meetings:   

The Architect will prepare for, attend and present at four public meetings as part of  the Basic Services included in 
this Agreement. Public meetings will include Library Board of  Trustees Meetings and/or Special Public Meetings as 
determined by the Owner.   
 
Existing Building Documentation: The Architect will develop cohesive digital documents based on the various sets 
of  existing blueline prints of  the existing building provided by the Owner. The digital documents will be utilized to 
develop plans, sections, elevations and three-dimensional studies as necessary to develop and communicate the 
concept design. These documents will also be necessary to develop bidding documents in subsequent phases of  the 
project. 
 
Preliminary Cost Estimating: Based on Architect’s Concept Development documents, CCS International, Inc. will 
prepare estimates of  probable construction and project cost in their role as Owner’s Representative to the Library. 
If  the cost estimate exceeds Project Budget, then Architect together with Owner will develop strategies including 
scope reduction to align project costs and budget. The Architect will work with CCS to establish a conceptual 
budget allowance for Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment corresponding to the selected concept. 
 
Presentation Material: 
The Architect shall provide physical story boards and corresponding digital files illustrating the developed concept 
for display at the Library. 
 
 
Additional Services Provided Only if Authorized in Advance by the Owner: 

Providing services related to zoning applications or approvals. 

Providing analyses of  owning and operating costs. 

Providing services of  consultants other than those listed above as included in the Agreement. 

Providing services to investigate existing conditions or facilities or to make measured drawings thereof. 

Providing services to verify the accuracy of  drawings or other information furnished by the Client. 

Providing a physical model. 

Public meetings in addition to the four included within this agreement will be compensated at a rate of  $1,500 per 

meeting. 

72 



 

 

  3  

 
  
Basis of Compensation: 

Basic Services Compensation shall be a lump sum of $54,000. Progress payments shall be billed monthly in 

accordance with the percentage of services completed to date. The professional services break down as follows: 
 

Program Definition: $15,000 

Preliminary Civil Engineering: $7,000 

Concept Development: $20,000 

Public Meetings: $6,000 

Existing Building Documentation: $6,000 

 

  
Reimbursable Expense Allowance: $2,500 

 

Additional Services Compensation, if required, shall be computed as follows:   

Hourly at SNHA’s normal billing rates at the time of this Agreement (see attached) unless otherwise mutually 

agreed upon in written form prior to the services being rendered. The billing rate for Eric Penney and Don McKay 

is $250/hour. The billing rate for Amy Schmeiding is $190/hour. Additional in-office support will be provided by 

various staff members as needed. 

 
The executed copies of this Proposal together with the attached Business Terms will serve as our 

Agreement and represent the entire understanding between the Owner and Sheehan Nagle Hartray 

Architects.  SNHA shall commence with this service(s) upon return of a fully executed document. 

 

Signatories: 

Architect 

Sheehan Nagle Hartray Architects, Ltd. 

 Owner 

Lisle Library District 

 

 

  

Signature 

 

 

Eric D. Penney, Principal 

 Signature 

 

 

 

Printed Name & Title 

 

 

12 November 2020 

 Printed Name & Title 

Date  Date 

 

73 



 

 

1 3 0  E a s t  R a n d o l p h ,  S u i t e  3 1 0 0 ,  C h i c a g o  I L  6 0 6 0 1            3 1 2 . 6 3 3 . 2 9 0 0             s n h - a . c o m  

BUSINESS TERMS  

 

Project: Lisle Library Concept Design  Phase Date:    12 November 2020 

      

Owner: Lisle Library District     Architect: Sheehan Nagle Hartray Architects, Ltd. 

  

   

Initial Information: 

The Owner and Architect may rely on the Initial Information, Owner instructions and Owner approvals for the 
project. Both parties recognize the Initial Information may change, and in that event the Owner and Architect shall 
work together to review and amend the Architect’s services and compensation accordingly.   
 

Architect’s Responsibilities: 

Architect shall provide the professional services included in this Agreement consistent with professional skill and 
care ordinarily provided by architects practicing in similar locales under similar conditions.  The Architect shall 
perform its services consistent with such professional skill and care and the orderly progress of  the Project. The 
Architect shall coordinate the services provided by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants. 
 
Owner’s Rights and Responsibilities: 

Owner shall provide full information regarding requirements for the Project, including a site survey with property 
lines, setbacks, topography, utility and tree locations, a program which shall set forth Owner’s objectives, schedule, 
constraints and criteria, including space requirements in relationships, flexibility, expendability, special equipment, 
systems, site requirements and a Project budget with reasonable allowance for contingencies.  When Owner 
decisions are required, Owner shall make them promptly so as not to delay the Project.  Owner shall have the right 
to use for this Project the drawings, specifications and any other documents, samples, prototypes or other materials 
prepared by Architect, but these documents are instruments of  Architect’s service for use solely with respect to this 
Project, and Architect shall be deemed the author of  these documents, retaining all common law, statutory and 
other reserved rights. The Architect shall provide the Owner with electronic drawing files developed for this project 
in both pdf  and their native file format provided the Owner recognizes the preliminary nature of  said documents 
and agrees to indemnify the Architect accordingly. 
 
Additional Services: 

Owner may request, or it may become necessary for Architect to perform Additional Services in order to further 
the Owner’s objectives. Upon recognizing the need to perform Additional Services, the Architect will notify the 
Owner but shall not proceed with Additional Services until receiving authorization from the Owner.   Modifications 
or changes requested by Owner inconsistent with Owner’s prior approval(s) or direction(s) shall be considered 
Additional Services.  Architect shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of  any drawings of  other information 
supplied to it by Owner or any third party, and any services necessitated because of  an error or omission in any 
such drawing or information supplied by others shall be an Additional Service.  Additional Services shall be 
compensated per the terms of  the Owner-Architect Agreement. 
 
Invoicing & Payment: 

Invoices will be issued monthly and are to be paid in accordance with the Illinois Local Government Prompt 
Payment Act.  Invoices not paid when due will accrue simple interest at the rate of  1-1/2% per month on the 
unpaid balance.  Architect shall be entitled to recover all costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred in 
enforcing payment under any agreement between Architect and Owner.  Owner agrees to inspect the products or 
services for which payment is sought in each invoice within 10 days of  the date of  the invoice, and any claim 
regarding the accuracy of  the invoice or the satisfactoriness of  the products or services shall be deemed waived if  
not made within this 10-day period.  No deductions shall be made from Architect's compensation on account of  

74 



 

 

  2  

penalty, liquidated damages or other sums withheld from payments to contractors, or on account of  the cost of  
changes in the Work other than those for which Architect has been adjudged to be liable.   
 
Reimbursable Expenses:   

In addition to fees for professional services, the Architect shall be paid for reimbursable expenses---including out-
of-house reproduction work, postage, messenger and delivery services, and the expense of  additional insurance 
coverage limits requested by Owner in excess of  that normally carried by Architect and Architect’s consultants---a 
multiple of   1.1 times the expenses incurred by Architect, Architect’s employees and consultants in the interest of  
the Project. Local transportation and in-house printing are not considered reimbursable expenses. 
 
Time of Performance:  

Architect will use its best efforts to perform its services with reasonable professional promptness and in accordance 
with any deadlines or schedules mutually established and agreed to.  If Architect is delayed, hindered or prevented 
from performing its services for any reason beyond Architect’s control, Architect shall be granted an extension of 
time equivalent to the period of delay in which to complete Architect’s services. 
 
Construction Cost:   

Architect’s evaluation of  Owner’s budget and/or estimate of  construction costs represent Architect’s best judgment 
as a design professional.  It is recognized, however, that neither Architect nor Owner has any control over the costs 
of  labor, materials, furniture, furnishings or equipment, over contractors’ methods of  determining bid prices, or 
over competitive bidding, market or negotiation conditions.  Accordingly, Architect cannot and does not warrant or 
represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from Architect’s estimates or the project budget.  No fixed 
limit of  Construction Cost shall be established as a condition of  this Agreement by the furnishing, proposal or 
establishment of  a Project budget, unless such a fixed limit is agreed upon in writing and signed by the parties 
hereto.  If  such a fixed limit is established, the Architect shall be permitted to include contingencies for design, 
bidding and price escalation, to make reasonable adjustments to the scope of  the Project, and to include in the 
Contract Documents alternate bids to adjust the Construction Cost to the fixed limit.  If  Owner desires Architect to 
value-engineer or otherwise rework designs or documents in order to reduce construction or procurement costs, 
unless a fixed limit has been agreed to as described herein, Architect will perform these services, which shall be 
billed and paid as Additional Services. 
 
Time of Performance:  

Architect will use its best efforts to perform its services with reasonable professional promptness and in accordance 
with any deadlines or schedules mutually established and agreed to.  If Architect is delayed, hindered or prevented 
from performing its services for any reason beyond Architect’s control, Architect shall be granted an extension of 
time equivalent to the period of delay in which to complete Architect’s services. 
 
Claims and Insurance:   

Owner acknowledges the Architect is a corporation and agrees to make any claim arising out of  or relating to the 
project against Architect only, and not against any of  Architect’s directors, officers, employees or agents.  The 
Owner acknowledges and agrees that Change Orders may be required as a result, in whole or in part of  imprecision, 
mistakes, incompleteness, ambiguities or inconsistencies in the Drawings, Specifications and other design 
documents furnished by the Architect or in the other professional services performed by the Architect under this 
Agreement.  Accordingly, the Owner agrees to establish a contingency as part of  its Project budget that will be used 
to fund Change Orders due to these circumstances; however, Architect will issue necessary instructions or 
corrections as part of  its normal services.   
 
Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of  or related to this Agreement shall be subject to 
mediation as a condition precedent to arbitration or the institution of  legal or equitable proceedings by either party. 
Arbitration shall be conducted in Chicago, Illinois in accordance with the Construction Industry Expedited 
Arbitration Rules of  the American Arbitration Association then obtaining.  The mediator/arbitrator shall be a 
design professional reasonably satisfactory to both parties.  This agreement to arbitrate shall be specifically 
enforceable under prevailing arbitration law, any award rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be final, and judgment may 

75 



 

 

  3  

be entered upon it in accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.  Architect and Owner 
waive all rights against each other and their agents and employees for damages to the extent covered by property 
insurance.   
 
The Architect shall maintain the following insurance until the termination of  this Agreement: 
 

• General Liability    $1,000,000 each occurrence / $2,000,000 aggregate 

• Automobile Liability:   $1,000,000 per accident 

• Workers Compensation:  at statutory limit 

• Employers Liability:   $1,000,000 each accident / $1,000,000 policy limit 

• Professional Liability:   $2,000,000 per claim / $2,000,000 aggregate 
 
Termination and Acceptance:   

Either party may terminate any contract between them upon at least seven days’ advance written notice to the other.  
In the event the Owner terminates their agreement, all provisions establishing the parties’ legal rights and liabilities 
shall survive and Owner shall compensate Architect for all services provided to the date of  receipt of  the notice of  
termination.  If  Owner consists of  more than one individual, each such individual represents and warrants that 
s/he is an agent for each other such individual and is authorized to enter into this agreement on behalf  of  all such 
individuals. 
 
Freedom of Information Act (FOIA): 
The Owner is subject to the Freedom of  Information act, 5 ILCS 140/1 et seq. (FOIA). All information submitted 
by the Architect to the Owner is subject to disclosure to third parties in accordance with FOIA. The Architect shall 
provide the Owner with all documents requested thereby enabling the Owner to respond timely to any requests 
received for documents pursuant to FOIA. 
 
Miscellaneous: 

This agreement is binding on the parties hereto and their heirs, executors, administrators, partners and assigns.  All 
notices or other communications described in this agreement shall be deemed effective upon receipt and may be 
sent in any reasonable manner, including first class mail, telefax or personal or messenger delivery.  This agreement 
shall be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois and contains the parties’ integrated agreement, superseding any 
prior representations or agreements, written or oral.  No person or entity other than Owner and Architect is 
intended to be a beneficiary of this agreement.  
 

76 



 

1 3 0  E a s t  R a n d o l p h ,  S u i t e  3 1 0 0  C h i c a g o  I L  6 0 6 0 1  3 1 2 . 6 3 3 . 2 9 0 0  s h e e h a n n a g l e h a r t r a y . c o m  

 

SHEEHAN NAGLE HARTRAY ARCHITECTS 

2020 BILLING RATE SCHEDULE 

 

 

Principal   $250 per hour 

Associate Principal  $190.00 per hour 

Associate/Program 

Manager   $185.00 per hour 

Director   $165.00 per hour 

Program Coordinator  $155.00 per hour 

Designer/Architect 6  $160.00 per hour   

 

Digital Technology 

Specialist   $160.00 per hour 

Designer/Architect 5  $145.00 per hour 

Designer/Architect 4  $135.00 per hour 

BIM Technician II  $135.00 per hour 

Designer/Architect 3  $125.00 per hour 

 

Digital Design Specialist  $125.00 per hour 

Designer/Architect 2  $120.00 per hour 

 

BIM Technician I  $120.00 per hour 

Designer 1   $100.00 per hour 

Administration   $  85.00 per hour 

 

 

 

77 



T
a

sk
 N

a
m

e
D

u
ra

ti
o

n
S

ta
rt

F
in

is
h

L
ib

ra
ry

 B
o

a
rd

 A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t
0
 d

a
y
s

W
e
d

 1
1
/1

8
/2

0
W

e
d

 1
1
/1

8
/2

0

P
ro

g
ra

m
 D

e
fi

n
it

io
n

5
8
 d

a
y
s

T
h

u
 1

1
/1

9
/2

0
M

o
n

 2
/8

/2
1

P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

d
is

cu
ss

io
n
s 

w
/L

LD
 T

ea
m

5
 d

ay
s

T
h
u
 1

1
/1

9
/2

0
W

ed
 1

1
/2

5
/2

0

T
h

a
n

k
sg

iv
in

g
 H

o
li

d
a

y
2

 d
a

y
s

T
h

u
 1

1
/2

6
/2

0
F

ri
 1

1
/2

7
/2

0

V
is

io
n
in

g 
w

it
h
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

ta
ff

2
 d

ay
s

M
o
n
 1

1
/3

0
/2

0
T

u
e 

1
2
/1

/2
0

Fi
rs

t 
d
ra

ft
 o

f 
p
ro

gr
am

1
0
 d

ay
s

W
ed

 1
2
/2

/2
0

T
u
e 

1
2
/1

5
/2

0

R
ev

ie
w

 w
it
h
 L

LD
 T

ea
m

6
 d

ay
s

W
ed

 1
2
/1

6
/2

0
W

ed
 1

2
/2

3
/2

0

H
o

li
d

a
y

 B
re

a
k

8
 d

a
y

s
T

h
u

 1
2

/2
4

/2
0

M
o

n
 1

/4
/2

1

P
ro

gr
am

 r
ef

in
em

en
t

1
0
 d

ay
s

T
u
e 

1
/5

/2
1

M
o
n
 1

/1
8
/2

1

R
ev

ie
w

 w
it
h
 L

LD
 T

ea
m

5
 d

ay
s

T
u
e 

1
/1

9
/2

1
M

o
n
 1

/2
5
/2

1

Fi
n
al

iz
e 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 a
n
d
 s

p
ac

e 
n
ee

d
s

1
0
 d

ay
s

T
u
e 

1
/2

6
/2

1
M

o
n
 2

/8
/2

1

C
o

n
c
e
p

t 
D

e
si

g
n

5
0
 d

a
y
s

T
u

e
 1

/5
/2

1
M

o
n

 3
/1

5
/2

1

Fi
rs

t 
d
ra

ft
 o

f 
co

n
ce

p
t(

s)
1
0
 d

ay
s

T
u
e 

1
/5

/2
1

M
o
n
 1

/1
8
/2

1

R
ev

ie
w

 w
it
h
 L

LD
 T

ea
m

5
 d

ay
s

T
u
e 

1
/1

9
/2

1
M

o
n
 1

/2
5
/2

1

Se
co

n
d
 d

ra
ft

 o
f 
co

n
ce

p
t(

s)
1
0
 d

ay
s

T
u
e 

1
/2

6
/2

1
M

o
n
 2

/8
/2

1

R
e

v
ie

w
 w

it
h

 L
LD

 T
e

a
m

4
 d

a
y

s
T

u
e

 2
/9

/2
1

F
ri

 2
/1

2
/2

1

D
ev

el
o
p
 s

el
ec

te
d
 c

o
n
ce

p
t

7
 d

ay
s

M
o
n
 2

/1
5
/2

1
T

u
e 

2
/2

3
/2

1

R
ev

ie
w

 w
it
h
 L

LD
 T

ea
m

2
 d

ay
s

W
ed

 2
/2

4
/2

1
T

h
u
 2

/2
5
/2

1

C
o
st

 e
st

im
at

in
g

1
0
 d

ay
s

W
ed

 2
/2

4
/2

1
T

u
e 

3
/9

/2
1

R
ev

ie
w

 w
it
h
 L

LD
 T

ea
m

4
 d

ay
s

W
ed

 3
/1

0
/2

1
M

o
n
 3

/1
5
/2

1

P
u

b
li

c 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s

6
5

 d
a

y
s

W
e

d
 1

2
/1

6
/2

0
W

e
d

 3
/1

7
/2

1

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
B

o
a

rd
 o

f 
T

ru
st

e
e

s
0

 d
a

y
s

W
e

d
 1

2
/1

6
/2

0
W

e
d

 1
2

/1
6

/2
0

S
p

e
ci

a
l 

P
u

b
li

c 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
 #

1
0

 d
a

y
s

T
u

e
 1

/1
9

/2
1

T
u

e
 1

/1
9

/2
1

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 B

o
a

rd
 o

f 
T

ru
st

e
e

s
0

 d
a

y
s

W
e

d
 1

/2
0

/2
1

W
e

d
 1

/2
0

/2
1

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 B
o

a
rd

 o
f 

T
ru

st
e

e
s

0
 d

a
y

s
W

e
d

 2
/1

7
/2

1
W

e
d

 2
/1

7
/2

1

S
p

e
ci

a
l 

P
u

b
li

c 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
 #

2
0

 d
a

y
s

T
u

e
 3

/1
6

/2
1

T
u

e
 3

/1
6

/2
1

M
a

rc
h

 B
o

a
rd

 o
f 

T
ru

st
e

e
s

0
 d

a
y

s
W

e
d

 3
/1

7
/2

1
W

e
d

 3
/1

7
/2

1

1
1

/1
8

1
2

/1
6

1
/1

9

1
/2

0

2
/1

7

3
/1

6

3
/1

7

N
o

v 
'2

0
D

e
c 

'2
0

Ja
n

 '2
1

F
e

b
 '2

1
M

a
r 

'2
1

A
p

r 
'2

1

L
is

le
 L

ib
ra

ry
P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

C
o
n
ce

p
t 

D
es

ig
n
 P

h
as

e 
Sc

h
ed

u
le

78 



Lisle Library District 
Preliminary Project Parameters -10-1-2020

Summary of Current Project Parameters for Concept Phase 

The capital improvement project shall incorporate and address the Lisle Library District’s Strategic 

Plan including its Vision, Mission and Values. 

Project schemes are to address the parameters and needs of the LLD. Initially two schemes are 

anticipated for the concept phase: 

1. Single Phase Construction Renovation Project

2. Multi-Phase Construction Renovation Project

The LLD has identified the following parameters and needs: 

o Baseline Project Scope:
 Renovation and reconfiguration of the existing building to improve spatial and

operational efficiencies throughout the Library.

 MEP Renovations as needed for the reconfiguration

 Address all FQC Facility Condition Assessment Report Recommendations

 Review the potential relocation of the Library entrance to make efficient use of

circulation and staff resources and maximize the building’s visibility.

 Incorporate Universal Design Principles

o Interior Space Notes:
 Relocate Departments if needed to improve spatial and operational efficiencies.

 Youth Department space is currently inadequate and is to be expanded

including a flex story-time space and teen area.

 Provide adequate access to restroom facilities, including family restrooms and

nursing rooms, from all departments.

 Improve productivity, purpose and sense of place for staff spaces

 Review the condition of existing FFE for potential reuse where possible.

o Add Alternates to be considered:
 Improvements to the exterior envelope within the context of addressing

maintenance concerns, improving building performance and creating a

welcoming façade.

 Addition of a drive-up window

 A building addition to accommodate space increases.

 Site improvements including new landscaping, parking reconfiguration and

outdoor program space.

 Good / Better / Best options (major material selections, reconfigurations, etc.)

are to be developed for review with costs.

o Other Considerations:
 The Library owns the unimproved lots to the East (725 Front St.) and the South

(4931 Kingston Ave.) of the main Library building parcel. The selected architect

is to review if one of these lots can be utilized for outdoor programing.

Project Costs 
The baseline project cost is anticipated to be in the range of $8.5M to $9M.  Add alternates are to 

be developed and will be evaluated in order to obtain best value for this capital project.  

79 

eric
Text Box
Exhibit 'A'



 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE ) 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICITY 
 
 

I, Emily Swistak, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified Secretary of the 
 
 Board of Trustees of the Lisle Library District of DuPage County, Illinois, and, as such 
 
 I am the custodian and keeper of the records and files of said Library District. 
 
 

I do further certify that the attached is a true and correct copy of that certain Levy 
 
 Ordinance levying and assessing taxes for said Lisle Library District for the fiscal year 
 
 beginning July 1, 2020, which was adopted by said Board of Trustees at a meeting of 
 
 said Board of Trustees held on November 18, 2020. 
 
 

I do further certify that the attached Ordinance has not been amended, altered, 
 
 changed or repealed and is still in full force and effect. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature and the 
 
 corporate seal of said Lisle Library District, DuPage County, Illinois, at Lisle, Illinois this 
 
 18th day of November, 2020. 
 
 
______________________________ 

Emily Swistak 
Secretary, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District 
DuPage County, Illinois 

80 



1 

 

 

ORDINANCE 20-06 
TAX LEVY ORDINANCE 

 
AN ORDINANCE LEVYING TAXES FOR CORPORATE PURPOSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 
2020, AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2021, FOR THE LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT, OF DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.1  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF THE LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT: 

 
Section 1: Ordinance 20-05 (Budget and Appropriation Ordinance) is incorporated by 
reference. 

 
Section 2: A tax for the following sums of money, or as much as thereof as may be authorized 
by law, to defray all expenses and liabilities of the Lisle Library District be and the same is 
hereby levied for the purposes specified against all taxable property in the Lisle Library District 
for the fiscal year commencing on the 1st day of July, 2020, and ending on the 30th day of 
June, 2021. 

 
  

 

 
1. CORPORATE FUND 

 

AMOUNT  

APPROPRIATED 

 

AMOUNT 

LEVIED 

EXPENDITURES    

A. EMPLOYEE COSTS   

 Salaries $2,300,000.00  $2,095,325.00 

 Health Insurance/Unemployment $375,000.00  $300,000.00 

  2,675,000.00  $2,395,325.00 

    

B. BUILDING COSTS   

 Internet Service /INET $8,200.00  $7,000.00 

 Utilities $85,500.00  $70,000.00 

 Maintenance Contracts $105,500.00  $87,500.00 

 Maintenance/Repairs $120,000.00  $93,700.00 

 Rubbish Removal 4,000.00  $3,000.00 

  $323,200.00  $261,200.00 

                                                           
1 Note to taxpayers:   

 This Tax Levy Ordinance relates to Library District taxes to be reflected on DuPage County real estate tax bills to be 
sent in May, 2021. 

 The real estate tax revenue generated by this Tax Levy Ordinance will be received by the Library District in 2021.   

 Reference in this Tax Levy Ordinance to the Library District’s 2020-2021 fiscal year simply complies with state laws 
applicable to Library Districts. 

81 



2 

 

 

 
 

 
CORPORATE FUND (cont.) 

AMOUNT  
APPROPRIATED 

AMOUNT 
LEVIED 

C. OPERATING EXPENSES   

 Postage/shipping $15,500.00  $14,300.00 

 Printing $18,500.00  $18,000.00 

 Office Supplies/Processing $80,000.00  $68,000.00 

 Bank/Notices $5,500.00  $5,000.00 

 Local Travel $600.00  $600.00 

  $120,100.00  $105,900.00 

    

D. INSURANCE   

 Fidelity Bond $2,400.00  $2,100.00 

 Property and Liability Coverage $35,000.00  $30,000.00 

 Notary Bond $0.00  $0.00 

 Workers Comp Insurance $8,500.00  $7,500.00 

  $45,900.00  $39,600.00 

    

E. CONTRACTUAL SERVICES   

 Legal Services $25,000.00  $15,000.00 

 Collection Agency $700.00  $700.00 

 Other Contractual Services $120,000.00  $101,500.00 

 Investment Agency Consultants $8,000.00  $7,350.00 

 Audit Fee $9,000.00  $8,700.00 

 Payroll Service $8,000.00  $7,700.00 

 Accounting Maintenance/Upgrades $15,000.00  $10,000.00 

  $185,700.00  $150,950.00 

    

F. PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT   

 Dues/Meetings/Conferences, Staff $10,000.00  $10,000.00 

 Memorial/Tribute/Recognition $5,000.00  $0.00 

 In-Service $0.00  $0.00 

 Training/Continuing-Ed, Staff $3,000.00  $1,500.00 

 Dues/Meetings/Conferences/Training, Trustees $4,000.00  $3,525.00 

  $22,000.00  $15,025.00 

    

G. EQUIPMENT   

 Polaris $55,000.00  $53,000.00 

 Technology $60,000.00  $50,000.00 

 Minor Equipment $4,000.00  $3,500.00 

 Facility $15,000.00  $10,000.00 

 Equipment Maintenance/Repair $25,000.00  $20,000.00 

  $159,000.00  $136,500.00 

82 



3 

 

 

 
CORPORATE FUND (cont.) 

AMOUNT  
APPROPRIATED 

AMOUNT 
LEVIED 

H. LIBRARY MATERIALS   

 Books $250,000.00  $225,000.00 

 Databases $155,000.00  $144,000.00 

 AV $170,000.00  $158,000.00 

 Periodicals $47,500.00  $43,000.00 

 Document Delivery/ILL $25,000.00  $23,000.00 

  $647,500.00  $593,000.00 

    

I. PROGRAMS   

 Programs $25,000.00  $25,000.00 

 Supplies/Comm Relations $20,000.00  $16,000.00 

  $45,000.00  $41,000.00 

    

J. RESTRICTED EXPENSES   

 Gifts (if gifts are received) $20,000.00  $0.00 

 Per Capita Grant (per State standards if received) $38,000.00  $0.00 

 Transfer to Special Reserve Fund2 $1,000,000.00  $0.00 

 Transfer to IMRF (supplemental funding) $50,000.00  $0.00 

  $1,108,000.00  $0.00 

    

K. CONTINGENCY $25,000.00  $0.00 

    

Corporate Fund appropriation subtotal 

Levied for the foregoing  expenses from the General Public Library Tax 
$5,356,400.00  

 $3,738,500.00 

  

 Appropriated from other sources within fund $1,617,900.00  

    

2.  IMRF (Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund) 

Levied for the foregoing expense of Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 

from a Special Tax in addition to all other taxes levied by the District 

  

$185,000.00  

 $80,000.00 

  

 Appropriated from other sources within fund  $105,000.00  
 

                                                           
2 The LLD Board of Trustees intends to transfer $1,000,000 to the Special Reserve with said amount to come from reserves in the 
Corporate Fund. 

83 



4 

 

 

 
 

Section 3:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED and approved November 18, 2020, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 
 
 
AYES: _________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NAYS: __________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Thomas Hummel 
President, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District 

Passed and filed in my office November 18, 2020. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Emily Swistak 
Secretary, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District 

 AMOUNT  
APPROPRIATED 

AMOUNT 
LEVIED 

  

3. FICA FUND  (Federal Insurance Contributions Act) 

Levied for the foregoing expense of Social Security from Special 

Tax in addition to all other taxes levied by the District 

$173,000.00    

 $168,000.00   

    

      

 Appropriated from other sources within fund $5,000.00    

      

4.  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND $1,380,000.00    

   $0.00   

 Appropriated from other sources within fund $1,380,000.00    

      

SUMMARY:      

      

Total Appropriation $7,094,400.00    

      

Appropriated from other sources  $3,107,900.00    

      

Levied as the General Public Library Tax  $3,738,500.00   

      

Levied as Special Fund Taxes  $248,000.00   

      

TOTAL LEVY  $3,986,500.00   

84 



 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
   ) SS 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE ) 
 
 
 CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH 

THE TRUTH IN TAXATION LAW 

 
 

I, Thomas Hummel, certify that I am the duly presiding officer of the Lisle Library District, DuPage 

County, Illinois, and I certify that the attached ORDINANCE 20-06 (tax levy) was adopted in compliance 

with the Truth in Taxation Law, 35 ILCS 200/18-55 et seq., i.e.: 

__X__ The Library District levied an amount less than 105% of the final aggregate   
  extension plus any amount abated prior to extension for the preceding year. 

 
_____ The Library District levied an amount greater than 105% of the final aggregate   

  extension plus any amount abated prior to extension for the preceding year and   
  a public hearing was held following publication of notice of the public hearing. 
 

This Certificate applies to the 2020 levy. 

 
_________________________________  

       Thomas Hummel 
President, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District 
DuPage County, Illinois 
 
Date signed: November 18, 2020 

 

85 



www.greentrails.org                           Page 5     customercare@acmweb.com

Scarecrow Scramble 5K  
Adapts to 2020

While it may look different 
this year, Lisle Park District 
and Lisle Partners for Parks 
Foundation are happy to host 
the	 16th	 Annual	 Scarecrow	
Scramble, in Community Park 
next month.
Saturday,	 October	 10,	
Community	 Park	 (1800	 Short	
St., Lisle) will provide the backdrop for the run/walk, beginning 
with	 the	youth	 run	at	5:30pm.	To	ensure	social	distance	 is	
followed, each run will be split into various time slots, with 
at	least	5	minutes	between	each	group.	Participants	are	to	
arrive just before their race time, to limit the number of people 
in	the	area	at	a	time.	Waves	for	the	5K	will	begin	at	6pm.
Our goal is to give the runners and walkers participating in 
our event a competitive racing experience in compliance with 
CDC, state and local guidelines. There is also the option to 
sign	up	for	the	Virtual	5K	and	run	the	Scarecrow	Scramble	in	
your own neighborhood. Share your photos from your virtual 
5K	with	us	on	social	media!
For those choosing to join the race in-person, please read 
through our detailed race guidelines and procedures to 
better understand how the race will look this year. Like every 
other year, costumes are highly encouraged!
Registration	 for	 the	Youth	Run	and	5K	Run/Walk,	 both	 in-
person	and	virtual,	is	open	through	October	7,	2020.	Those	
interested can register online at scarecrowscramble.com. 
Packet	 pick-up	will	 only	 be	available	 on	Friday,	October	 9	
from	11am-1pm	and	3-6pm	at	the	Recreation	Center	(1925	
Ohio St.). Virtual participants the option to have their bag 
shipped for an additional cost. Just check the shipping box 
at	 checkout.	 Participants	 will	 receive	 a	 2020	 quarter-zip	
pullover	 race	 shirt,	 official	 chip	 timed	 bib	 (in-person	 only),	
and post-race snacks (in-person only).
Funds raised through The Scarecrow Scramble will go to Lisle 
Partners for Parks Foundation to provide recreation scholarships 
to low-income families who do not have means to participate in 
recreation activities, and the Lisle Teens with Character Program. 
If you would like to help sponsor the event, email mljayne@
lisleparkdistrict.org.
The Lisle Partners for Parks Foundation’s purpose is to raise money 
through corporate and private contributions and in-kind donations. 
These funds are used for enriching the quality of life in the greater 
Lisle community by offering scholarships for families who otherwise 
could not afford to participate in recreation programs; contributing 
to	 the	beautification	of	parks	and	protection	of	natural	 resources;	
supporting and enhancing community programs and promoting 
recreational opportunities. Help the foundation accomplish its 
goals, mission and vision by serving on a committee or volunteering 
at a special event, or make a tax-deductible contribution through a 
donation to make the greater Lisle community a better place to live, 
work and play. Learn more by visiting lislepartnersforparks.org.

The Lisle Library District is OPEN 
with modified hours and curbside pick-up!

Lisle Library District  
is Fine-Free!
The	LLD	has	gone	fine-free!	The	
LLD recognizes that overdue 
fines	 may	 create	 a	 barrier	 to	
Library use. Therefore, the LLD 
has	 eliminated	 overdue	 fines	 for	
LLD materials/items as a means 
to alleviate such barriers. The 

LLD values barrier-free access to information, materials, 
and equipment for our patrons. However, eliminating 
overdue	 fines	 does	 not	 mean	 patron	 responsibility	 for	
Library materials/items has been abolished. Please see 
LLD	Policy	325:	Schedule	of	Fines,	Fees,	and	Financial	
Transactions	(https://bit.ly/2E4vZgo)	for	complete	details.	

LLD New Hours:
Due	 to	 the	continued	 risk	of	COVID-19,	 the	LLD	has	
re-opened	 with	 modified	 hours,	 new	 requirements,	
added services, and limits on some of our resources 
and space.
Hours:

•	 Monday	-	Friday:	11:00	am*	to	9:00	pm
•	 Saturday	-	10:00	am	to	5:00	pm
•	 Sunday	-	1:00	pm	to	5:00	pm

*The	first	 hour	of	 the	day,	Monday	 through	Friday,	 is	
reserved for patrons who are more vulnerable; Senior 
citizens, young children/caregivers/pregnant patrons, 
and those who have compromised immune systems.

Masks are required
Masks are required in the facility. LLD staff shall provide 
a complimentary face mask to someone who hasn’t 
come prepared. The LLD has adult and child-size 
masks. Wearing a mask is an act of respect, caring, 
and support for our community’s health and economy.

Curbside Pick-Up:
Curbside pick-up is available:
•	 Tuesdays and Thursdays:  

11:00	am-1:00	pm	 
&	5:00	pm-7:00	pm.	

•	 Saturdays:	10:00	am-2:00	pm.
•	 Registration for a pick-up time 

slot is required.
•	 This service is reserved for LLD patrons only. 
•	 Pick-up items will be in plastic bags. 

For complete opening and pick-up info, go to 
lislelibrary.org/new-notable

86 



 

1 
 

APPROVED 
LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT 

PERSONNEL & POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING 

August 5, 2020 - 7:00 p.m. 

 

1. Roll call   

Present: 

Emily Swistak - Secretary | Chair (via GoToMeeting) 

Marjorie Bartelli - Vice President (via GoToMeeting) 

Thomas Duffy - Trustee (via GoToMeeting) 

Thomas Hummel - President (via GoToMeeting) 

Tatiana Weinstein - Director/Ex-officio 

Beth McQuillan - Assistant Director/Ex-officio 

 

Also Present: 

Chris Knight - Recording Secretary 

 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak - None 

 

3. Approve Minutes of the February 21, 2020 Personnel-Policy Committee Meeting 

MOTION: Trustee Duffy moved to approve the minutes of the February 21, 2020 

Personnel-Policy Committee Meeting. Vice President Bartelli seconded. 

Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 

 

4. LLD Outstanding Check Measures Policy 716 (new) - Draft Discussion 

 

Director Weinstein stated that this was a new policy as recommended by the Library’s auditor. 

The purpose of the policy is to ensure accurate cash reporting. Director Weinstein noted a typo in 

the last sentence of the draft. 

 

Discussion: President Hummel asked about a minimum dollar amount and unclaimed 

property laws pertaining to a person living out-of-state. Assistant Director McQuillan stated 

that if there are unclaimed funds, the funds go to the State of Illinois for record keeping.  

 

The Committee agreed to recommend LLD Policy 716: Outstanding Check Measures for Board 

approval at the next regular meeting.  

 

5. LLD Emergency Closure of Library Policy 605 - Draft Discussion 

 

Director Weinstein provided an overview of the policy. 

 

Discussion: Secretary Swistak commented that she felt the policy was clear. Vice President 

Bartelli asked about employee pay during emergency closings. Director Weinstein explained 

by citing an example of a complete power outage where employees would be paid for the 

hours scheduled for that day. Trustee Duffy asked for clarification on language in the policy. 

Director Weinstein stated she would shore up the language. The Committee agreed with that 

action.  

 

87 



 

2 
 

The Committee agreed to recommend changes to LLD Policy 605: Emergency Closure of Library 

for Board approval at the next regular meeting. 

 

6. LLD Pandemic Response Policy 606 (new) - Draft Discussion 

 

Director Weinstein provided an overview of the policy. 

 

Discussion: President Hummel suggested putting the word ‘epidemic’ in the title of the 

policy. Trustee Duffy suggested to broaden it to ‘public health response’ instead of 

‘pandemic/epidemic response.’ The Committee agreed to change the title and rearrange 

some items within the policy. The Committee discussed the window of time for quarantine 

when employees travel to a ‘hotspot.’ The Committee agreed to keep the quarantine time to 

14 days. 

 

The Committee agreed to recommend LLD Policy 606: Public Health Response for Board approval 

at the next regular meeting. 

 

 

7. LLD Schedule of Fines, Fees, and Financial Transactions Policy 325 (Fine-free) - Draft Discussion  

 

Director Weinstein provided an overview about going fine-free including an explanation of other 

revenue generating services. 

 

Discussion: Director Weinstein asked the Committee whether the LLD should keep or change 

the $35.00 charge within item 1c. The Committee agreed to keep it at $35.00. Committee 

members discussed various revenue generating services. 

 

The Committee agreed to recommend changes to LLD Policy 325: Schedule of Fines, Fees, and 

Financial Transactions for Board approval at the next regular meeting. 

 

 

8. LLD Loan Periods Policy 315 - Draft Discussion 

 

Director Weinstein stated that the changes reflect the forthcoming adoption of a fine-free policy.  

Secretary Swistak reiterated that the only change made was the removal of the ‘fines’ column. 

 

The Committee agreed to recommend changes to LLD Policy 315: Loan Periods for Board 

approval at the next regular meeting. 

 

 

9. Community outreach - Discussion 

 

Director Weinstein reminded members that the Committee initiated discussion in February 

regarding a postcard/online survey and wished to return to the topic. Secretary Swistak 

mentioned she would like the whole Board to discuss this topic.  The Committee agreed that the 

topic should be discussed by the whole Board.  

88 



 

3 
 

 

10. Director Evaluation - Draft Discussion 

 

Secretary Swistak discussed the Director evaluation. Trustee Duffy shared an example evaluation 

with the Committee. Secretary Swistak stated she would like the Committee to revise the 

Director’s job description first. The Committee agreed that Secretary Swistak should begin work 

on a revised, draft, job description to bring to a future Committee meeting. 

 

11. Adjourn 

MOTION: Trustee Duffy moved to adjourn the meeting. Vice President Bartelli seconded. 

Roll Call Vote - All Aye 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:41 p.m. 

 

Recorded by: 

 

_____________________________ 

Chris Knight, Recording Secretary 

 

Approved by the Personnel & Policy Committee on November 11, 2020. 

Approved by 

 

_____________________________ 

Emily Swistak, Committee Chair 

89 


